Public Document Pack

Cheshire E;s?l

Council%

Public Rights of Way Committee
Agenda

Date:
Time:

Venue:

Thursday 17th March 2011
2.00 pm

Committee Suite 1,2 & 3, Westfields, Middlewich Road,
Sandbach CW11 1HZ

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press.

Part 2

items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons

indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report.

PART

1.

2.

1 — MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT
Apologies for Absence
Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any personal and/or
prejudicial interests in any item on the agenda

Minutes of Previous meeting (Pages 1 - 15)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 13 December 2010 as a correct
record.

Public Speaking Time/Open Session

Members of the public may speak on a particular application after the Chairman has
introduced the report, provided notice has been given in writing to Democratic
Services by 12 Noon, one clear working day before the meeting. A total of 6 minutes
is allocated for each application, with 3 minutes for objectors and 3 minutes for
supporters. If more than one person wishes to speak as an objector or supporter, the
time will be allocated accordingly or those wishing to speak may agree that one of
their number shall speak for all.

For any apologies or requests for further information, or to give notice of a question to be

asked by a member of the public

Contact: Rachel Graves

Tel: 01270 686473

E-Mail: rachel.graves@cheshireeast.gov.uk




10.

Also in accordance with Procedure Rule No. 35, a period of 10 minutes is allocated
for members of the public to address the Committee on any matter relevant to the
work of the Committee. Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5
minutes but the Chairman will decide how the period of time allocated for public
speaking will be apportioned where there are a number of speakers. Members of the
public are not required to give notice of their intention to speak; however, as a matter
of courtesy, a period of 24 hours’ notice is encouraged.

Members of the public wishing to ask a question should provide at least three clear
working days’ notice in writing, and should include the question with that notice. This
will enable an informed answer to be given.

Highways Act 1980 - Section 119: Application for the Diversion of Public
Footpath No 52, Parish of Bollington and Nos 35 (part) and 48, Parish of
Adlington (Pages 16 - 21)

To consider the application for the diversion of Public Footpath No. 52 in the parish of
Bollington and Nos 35 (part) and 48 in the parish of Adlington

Highways Act 1980 - Section 119: Proposed Diversion of Public Footpath No.
32 (part), Parish of Wildboarclough and Public Footpath No. 23 (part), Parish of
Sutton (Pages 22 - 27)

To consider the application for the diversion of Public Footpath No. 32 (part) in the
parish of Wildboarclough and Public Footpath No. 23 (part) in the parish of Sutton

Highways Act 1980 - Section 119: Application for the Diversion of part of Public
Footpath No. 8 in the Parish of Rainow (Pages 28 - 33)

To consider the application for the diversion of Public Footpath No. 8 in the parish of
Rainow

Highways Act 1980 - Section 119 - Application for the Diversion of Public
Footpath No 9 (part), Parish of Sutton (Pages 34 - 39)

To consider the application for the diversion of Public Footpath No. 9 (part) in the
parish of Sutton

Highways Act 1980 - Section 119 - Proposed Diversion of Public Footpath no.
25 (part), Parish of Kettleshulme (Pages 40 - 45)

To consider the application for the diversion of Public Footpath No.25 (part) in the
parish of Kettleshulme

Highways Act 1980 - Section 119 - Application for the Diversion of Public
Footpath No 39 (part), Parish of Wincle (Pages 46 - 51)

To consider the application for the diversion of Public Footpath No.39 (part) in the
parish of Wincle



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Highways Act 1980 - Section 119: Application for the Diversion of parts of
Public Footpath Nos 7, 8 and 26, Parish of Mottram St Andrew (Pages 52 - 59)

To consider the application for the diversion of parts of Public Footpath Nos 7, 8 and
26 in the parish of Mottram St Andrew

Highways Act 1980 - Section 119: Application for the Diversion of Public
Footpath no. 14 (part), Parish of Wildboarclough (Pages 60 - 65)

To consider the application for the diversion of Public Footpath No.14 (part) in the
parish of Wildboarclough

Highways Act 1980 -Section 119: Application for the Diversion of Public
Footpath No 128 (part), Parish of Wilmslow (Pages 66 - 70)

To consider the application for the diversion of Public Footpath No.128 (part) in the
parish of Wilmslow

Cheshire East Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2011-2026: Notification of
Implementation Plan 2011-2015 (Pages 71 - 94)

To consider a report on the first 4 year implementation plan under the Cheshire East
Rights of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) 2011-2026

Public Inquiry to Determine Definitive Map Modification Order - Poynton with
Worth Footpath Nos 92, 93 and 94 (Pages 95 - 98)

To receive, for information, a report on the outcome of a recent public inquiry

THERE ARE NO PART 2 ITEMS



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Public Rights of Way Committee
held on Monday, 13th December, 2010 at Committee Suite 1,2 & 3,
Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach CW11 1HZ

PRESENT

Councillor S Wilkinson (Chairman)
Councillor R Walker (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors Rhoda Bailey, D J Cannon, W S Davies and J Wray

OFFICERS PRESENT

Mark Wheelton, Leisure Services and Greenspaces Manager
Mike Taylor, Greenspace Manager

Amy Rushton, Rights of Way Manager

Genni Butler, Countryside Access Development Officer
Hannah Flannery, Definitive Map Officer

Clare Hibbert, Definitive Map Officer

Marianne Nixon, Public Path Orders Officer

Rachel Goddard, Solicitor

Rachel Graves, Democratic Services Officer

27 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from Councillor R Cartlidge.
28 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor D Cannon declared a personal interest in the meeting
proceedings by virtue of his membership of the PALLGO Rambling Club in
Crewe and Nantwich. In accordance with the code of conduct, he
remained in the meeting during consideration of all items of business.

Councillor Rhoda Bailey declared a personal interest in the meeting
proceedings by virtue of her membership of CPRE and as the
representative for Cheshire East Council on the Cheshire Local Access
Forum. In accordance with the code of conduct, she remained in the
meeting during consideration of all items of business.

29 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2010 be approved
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.



Page 2

30 PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

31

The Chairman announced that a number of members of the public had
registered to speak and that he would take these when the relevant
application on the agenda was considered.

VILLAGE GREEN APPLICATION NO. 48 - GORSEY BANK FIELD,
WILMSLOW

The Committee received a report seeking a decision on how to proceed
with village green application No.48 — Gorsey Bank Field, Wilmslow.

The Council was the registration authority for village greens and
responsibility for this function was delegated to the Public Rights of Way
Committee under the Council’s Constitution.

An application had been submitted in March 2009 to Cheshire County
Council by Mr C Stubbs on behalf of the Friends of Gorsey Field. The land
involved was at the rear of Gorsey Bank Primary School, Wilmslow and
was bounded to the north by 23 to 33 Alton Road and to the west by 1 to 7
Gorsey Road.

The application alleged that the land was a village green because it had
been used as of right for lawful sports and pastimes for a period of at least
20 years by a significant number of inhabitants of a locality or a
neighbourhood within a locality.

An objection had been submitted by Cheshire East Borough Council as
landowner and by the Governing Body of the Gorsey Bank Primary
School.

The Public Rights of Way Committee had adopted a procedure for
determining village green applications on 7 December 2009. Option 4 of
the procedure stated that an application validly made may be referred to
an independent person to either to consider the application on the basis of
written representations or to hold a non-statutory public inquiry and to
provide a report to the Committee.

The Committee agreed that a non-statutory public inquiry should be held
into the application as objections had been received, because there were
substantial disputes as to fact, and because Cheshire East Council was
the landowner.

RESOLVED:
1 That a non-statutory public inquiry be held into the application.

2 The Borough Solicitor be authorised to appoint an appropriately
qualified independent person to conduct that Inquiry and provide



Page 3

the Public Rights of Way Committee with a report and a
recommendation.

32 TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 - SECTION 257:
APPLICATION FOR THE STOPPING UP OF PUBLIC FOOTPATH NO.7
(PART), PARISH OF HIGH LEGH

The Committee received a report which detailed an application from SP
Energy Networks of SP Power Systems Ltd, 1 Atlantic Quay, Glasgow,
requesting the Council to make an Order under section 257 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 to extinguish part of Public Footpath No. 7
in the parish of High Legh.

In accordance with Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990, the Borough Council, as Planning Authority, can make an Order
stopping up a footpath or part of a footpath if it was satisfied that the
necessary to do so to enable development to be carried out in accordance
with a planning permission that had been granted.

The section of footpath No.7 to be closed was within a wide belt of grass
and scrub and encompassed an area of approximately 8 metres length by
4 metres wide. Due to the location of an electricity pole on the edge of this
area, the support stays for the pole would run at an angle across half of
the width of this belt of land. From consideration of historical ordnance
survey maps and internal records it was clear that the full width of this area
had been available for use as the footpath; therefore the closure of a 4
metre width to accommodate the stays would leave a further 4 metres for
the footpath to continue to the side. The full width was available before
and after this slight constriction. On average footpaths were required to be
2 metres in width if altered by a legal order.

High Legh Parish Council had been consulted and after a site visit had
objected to the proposal on the grounds that the path would be effectively
blocked by the pole stays. They were also concerned about the visual
impact the poles would have on an otherwise uncluttered landscape.

Considerations of enjoyment and user suitability of the proposed diversion
route are not considerations under the Town and Country Planning Act.
The only test to be met is that the footpath diversion was necessary to
enable development to be carried out.

The Committee considered that the proposed extinguishment was
necessary in order to enable the installation of a new electricity pole and
stays as part of a much larger scheme installing and renewing an
overhead electricity line between Carrington and Lostock sub stations and
that the legal tests for the making and confirming of an extinguishment
order were satisfied.



33

Page 4

RESOLVED:

1 An Order be made under Section 257 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 to stop up part of Public Footpath No.7 High
Legh as illustrated on Plan No.TCPA/005 on the grounds that the
Borough Council is satisfied that it is necessary in order to enable
development to take place.

2 Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event
of there being no objections within the period specified, the Order
be confirmed in the exercise of the powers conferred on the Council
by the said Acts.

3 In the event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire
East Borough Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing
or public inquiry.

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 - SECTION 257:
APPLICATION FOR THE DIVERSION OF PUBLIC FOOTPATH NO.55
(PART), PARISH OF MOBBERLEY

The Committee considered a report which detailed an application from
Drivers Jonas Deloitte (the agent) on behalf of Ollerton Leisure LLP (the
applicant) requesting that the Council make an Order under section 257 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to divert part of Public Footpath
No0.55 in the parish of Mobberley.

In accordance with Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990, the Borough Council, as Planning Authority, can make an Order
diverting a footpath if it was satisfied that it was necessary to do so to
enable development to be carried out in accordance with a planning
permission that had been granted.

Mr Graham Stock of Drivers Jonas Deloitte, representing the applicant,
spoke in support of the application.

Planning permission had been granted to the applicant on 24 June 2010 —
Planning Permission Ref: 09/2857M. The details of the decision notice are
for the expansion and improvement of the existing 9 hole golf course and
facilities including the installation of the a new practice range.

Part of the current line of Public Footpath No.55 (Mobberley) lay directly
on the site of the construction of part of the new practice range. The
practice range would be enclosed by a 10m high wire netted fence and the
existing footpath would be obstructed by the fence. Therefore the footpath
diversion was required to provide public access around the new practice
range. The length of the footpath proposed to be diverted was
approximately 50 metres.



34

Page 5

Objections to the proposed diversion had been received from Mobberley
Parish Council and adjacent landowners on the grounds that the proposed
diversion was not included originally as the indicative or proposed route in
the planning application and as such it was a material departure/conflict
from the proposed diversion at that time; the safety of walkers would be
brought into jeopardy and tension caused between them and the golfers;
and that connection footpaths and rural issues had not been fully
considered.

It was not for the Planning Committee to determine the merits of a
diversion proposal — this was the function of the Public Rights of Way
Committee. Considerations of enjoyment and user suitability of the
proposed diversion route were not considered under the Town and
Country Planning Act. The only test to be met was that the footpath
diversion was necessary to enable development to be carried out.

The Committee considered that the legal tests for the making and
confirming of a Diversion Order under section 257 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 were satisfied.

RESOLVED:

1 An Order be made under Section 257 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 to divert part of Public Footpath No.55
Mobberley as illustrated on Plan No.TCPA/004 on the grounds that
the Borough Council is satisfied that it is necessary to do so to allow
development to take place.

2 Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event
of there being no objections within the period specified, the Order
be confirmed in the exercise of the powers conferred on the Council
by the said Acts.

3 In the event of objections to the Order being received and not
resolved, Cheshire East Borough Council be responsible for the
conduct of any hearing or public inquiry.

TOWN AND PLANNING ACT 1990 - SECTION 257: APPLICATION FOR
THE DIVERSION OF PUBLIC FOOTPATH NO.7 (PART), PARISH OF
WARMINGHAM

The Committee considered a report which detailed an application from Mr
DS Varey (the applicant) requesting the Council to make an Order under
section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to divert part of
Public Footpath No.7 in the parish of Warmingham.

In accordance with Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990, the Borough Council, as Planning Authority, can make an Order
diverting a footpath if it was satisfied that it was necessary to do so to



35

Page 6

enable development to be carried out in accordance with a planning
permission that had been granted.

Planning permission had been granted to the applicant on 20 August 2010
— Planning Permission Ref: 10/2307N: Change of Use of Former Worm
Bed Area to Storage of Caravans and other Leisure Vehicles. The
consent was granted subject to various conditions, one of which was that
Public Footpath No.7 should be diverted under a formal diversion order.

The footpath would be moved to the east of the current route down an
existing track, providing an improved surface for walkers, and then through
the yard to connect with the existing line of the footpath, south of The Old
Hough. No path furniture would be required on the proposed route which
would also provide a more accessible route for walkers who have to
negotiate three stiles on the present route.

The Committee noted that no objections had been received. It was
considered that the legal tests for making and confirming of a Diversion
Order under section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 were
satisfied.

RESOLVED:

1 An Order be made under Section 257 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 to divert part of Public Footpath No.7
Warmingham as illustrated on Plan No.TCPA/003 on the grounds
that the Borough Council is satisfied that it is necessary to do so to
allow development to take place.

2 Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event
of there being no objections within the period specified, the Order
be confirmed in the exercise of the powers conferred on the Council
by the said Acts.

3 In the event of objections to the Order being received and not
resolved, Cheshire East Borough Council be responsible for the
conduct of any hearing or public inquiry.

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 - SECTION 119: APPLICATION FOR THE
DIVERSION OF PUBLIC FOOTPATH NO.20 (PART), PARISH OF
DODCOTT CUM WILKESLEY

The Committee received a report which detailed an application from Mr &
Mrs Jackson, Lilac Cottage, Whitchurch Road, Audlem (the applicant)
requesting the Council to make an Order under section 119 of the
Highways Act 1980 to divert part of Public Footpath No.20 in the parish of
Dodcott cum Wilkesley.

In accordance with Section 119(1) of the Highways Act 1980 it was within
the Council’s discretion to make an Order it if appeared to the Council to



Page 7

be expedient to do so in the interests of the public or of the owner, lessee
or occupier of the land crossed by the path.

The applicant owned the land over which the current path ran. The
proposed path ran over land owned by Mr Bailey, who had given his
signed agreement to the diversion.

The section of Public Footpath No. 20 Dodcott cum Wilkesley to be
diverted was a very short section of about 22 metres length that currently
ran through the garden of Lilac Cottage between the house and an
outbuilding in close proximity to the rear entrance to the house. This
section of footpath had been unavailable for many years and an unofficial
diversion existed which avoided the property. This seemed to have been
used by the public as no complaints about the path being obstructed had
been received in the past decade. Lilac Cottage was currently on the
housing market and a recent search revealed the existence of the
footpath. A sale had fallen through as the buyer’'s mortgage company
would not proceed with the footpath affecting the property. This had
caused significant concern to the landowner and in order to ensure that a
future sale would not be similarly undermined, the diversion was being
sought. The diversion would also be in the interests of the privacy and
security of any future occupier.

The proposed new route would follow the boundary fence from the west
around the south of the Lilac Cottage continuing in the pasture field it
currently ran through and rejoining the current alignment to the east of the
property. The path would have a recorded width of 2 metres throughout
and was approximately 7 metres longer than the current route but with no
requirement for gates or other path furniture.

The Committee noted that no objections had been received to the
proposal and considered that the new route would not be substantially less
convenient than the existing route. Diverting the footpath would be of
benefit to the landowner, particularly in terms of privacy and security and
for the purposes of selling the property. It was therefore considered that
the proposed route would be a satisfactory alternative to the current one
and that the legal tests for making and confirming of a diversion order
were satisfied.

RESOLVED:

1 An Order be made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as
amended by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to divert part of
Public Footpath No.20 Dodcott cum Wilkesley by creating a new
section of public footpath and extinguishing the current path as
illustrated on Plan No.HA/033 on the grounds that it is expedient in
the interests of the owner of the land crossed by the path.

2 Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event
of there being no objections within the period specified, the Order



Page 8

be confirmed in the exercise of the powers conferred on the Council
by the said Acts.

3 In the event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire
East Borough Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing
or public inquiry.

36 HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 - SECTION 119: APPLICATION FOR THE
DIVERSION OF PUBLIC FOOTPATH NO.2 (PART), PARISH OF
NEWHALL

The Committee considered a report which detailed an application from Mr
& Mrs Hutchins, Newhall Cross House, Wrenbury Road, Aston, Nantwich
(the applicant) requesting the Council to make an Order under section 119
of the Highways Act 1980 to divert Public Footpath No.2 in the parish of
Newhall.

In accordance with Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 it was within the
Council’s discretion to make an Order if it appeared to the Council to be
expedient to do so in the interests of the public or the owner, lessee or
occupier of the land crossed by the path.

Mr Bernard Cook, representing Mid Cheshire Footpath Society, spoke in
objection to the application.

The applicant owned the land over which the current and proposed
diversion ran. The section of Public Footpath No.2 Newhall to be diverted
ran in a generally easterly direction across the garden of the property to
the west of a hedge what was broken only by the property drive. The
garden to the east of the hedge was landscaped and furnished for use by
the owners whereas to the west, it was open mowed grass. The impact of
the layout was that some users misused the open area and others strayed
from the definitive line to exit the garden via the drive onto Woodcott Hill
Lane. The relative closeness of the current path to the property of the
owner also created privacy and security concerns.

The proposed new route would enter the garden of Newhall Cross House
through a gap/gate in the wall off Woodcote Hill Lane to run around the
garden boundary in an easterly direction, turning right at a hedge to
continue south to rejoin the present line of the path. The new route would
be fenced along the southern and western edges of the footpath leaving a
recorded width of 2.5m between the existing fence/hedge and the
proposed new fence.

Newhall Parish Council, Peak and Northern Footpath Society, South
Cheshire Ramblers and Mid Cheshire Footpath Society had expressed
objections regarding the danger of negotiating the bend on Wrenbury
Road when walking the section north from the current start point to reach
the start point of the proposed new route on Woodcott Hill Lane.



37

Page 9

In response to the objection it was stated that the speed limit at this point
was 30 mph and the nature of the bend forced drivers to slow down; that
no injury accidents had been reported to date along that stretch of road;
and that the bend already existed for walkers travelling north from the west
end of the existing route.

The Committee considered that the proposed route was not substantially
less convenient than the existing route and that diverting the footpath
would be of benefit to the landowner, especially in terms of privacy,
security and the need to remove conflict between the landowner and the
public over misuse of the garden area traversed by the current route. It
was therefore considered that the proposed route would be a satisfactory
alternative to the current one and that the legal tests for the making and
confirming of a diversion order were satisfied.

RESOLVED:

1 An Order be made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as
amended by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to divert part of
Public Footpath No.2 Newhall by creating a new section of public
footpath and extinguishing the current path as illustrated on Plan
No.HA/031 on the grounds that it is expedient in the interests of the
owner of the land crossed by the path.

2 Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event
of there being no objections within the period specified, the Order
be confirmed in the exercise of the powers conferred on the Council
by the said Acts.

3 In the event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire
East Borough Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing
or public inquiry.

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 - SECTION 119: APPLICATION FOR THE
DIVERSION OF PUBLIC FOOTPATH NO.34 (PART), PARISH OF
SUTTON

The Committee considered a report which detailed an application from Mr
Stanley, Foxbank Farm, Sutton (the applicant) requesting the Council to
make an Order under section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 to divert part
of Public Footpath No.34 in the parish of Sutton.

In accordance with Section 119(1) of the Highways Act 1980 it was within
the Council’s discretion to make the Order if it appears to the Council to be
expedient to do so in the interests of the public or of the owner, lessee or
occupier of the land crossed by the path.

The applicant owned the land over which the current and the proposed
alternative route ran. Public Footpath No.34 commenced at its junction



Page 10

with Hollins Lane and ran in a generally westerly direction along the
northern side of a field boundary up a steeply wooded slope for 64m
where it joined the surfaced driveway to Foxbank Farm. This first section
of the path was not available on the ground and may represent a mapping
anomaly on the definitive map. The public used a permissive path along
the southern side of the field boundary instead, through pasture.

The definitive line of the footpath then continued along the surfaced farm
drive, which was steep and narrow. It continued to the end of the surfaced
drive and passed the farm house to a field gate. This section of the path
was available to the public but most chose to continue along the
permissive path on the southern side of the boundary, along the edge of
the pasture field, rejoining the definitive line at the aforementioned field
gate.

The new proposed route would follow the aforementioned permissive
alternative to the definitive line, along the northern edge of the pasture
field, already much used by the public. It had a natural grass surface,
which the applicant would improve with stone flags or gritstone where it
was narrow. Although the path was completely unenclosed, it was along
the edge of a steep slope and some work would be required to provide a
level 1m width in front of the farm buildings.

The proposal would formalise the situation on the ground by making the
route currently used by the public the legal line of the route. This would
benefit the landowner in terms of security and privacy at the farm and
reduce the potential for conflict between the public and farm vehicles using
the steep narrow farm driveway. It would also create a more enjoyable
route for the public, as the uninterrupted views of the valley to the south
were not available from the definitive line. Also it would resolve the issue
of the possible mapping anomaly of the section of the definitive route
along the steep wooded slope up from Hollins Lane, which would be costly
and problematic to install on the ground.

The Committee noted that no objections had been received and
considered that the proposed footpath would be more convenient than the
existing route. Diverting the footpath would be of benefit to the
landowners, particularly in terms of security and privacy. It was therefore
considered that the proposed route would be as satisfactory as the current
route and that the legal tests for the making and confirming of a diversion
order were satisfied.

RESOLVED:

1 An Order be made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as
amended by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to divert part of
Public Footpath No.34 as illustrated on Plan No.HA/028 on the
grounds that it is expedient in the interests of the owner of the land
crossed by the path and of the public.



Page 11

2 Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event
of there being no objections to the Order within the period specified,
the Order be confirmed in the exercise of the powers conferred on
the Council by the said Acts.

3 In the event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire
East Borough Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing
or public inquiry.

38 HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 - SECTION 119: DIVERSION OF PUBLIC
FOOTPATH NO. 2 (PART), PARISH OF MOTTRAM ST ANDREW

The Committee received a report which detailed an application from Mr
AM Harle, Hunters Pool Farm, Mottram St Andrew, Macclesfield (the
applicant) requesting the Council to make an Order under section 119 of
the Highways Act 1980 to divert Public Footpath No.2 in the parish of
Mottram St Andrew.

In accordance with Section 119(1) of the Highways Act 1980 it was within
the Council’s discretion to make the Order if it appeared to the Council to
be expedient to do so in the interests of the public or of the owner, lessee
or occupier of the land crossed by the path.

The applicant owned the land over which the current path and the
proposed diversion ran. The path to be diverted ran through the property
of the landowner giving rise to concerns relating to security and safety.
The landowner also had planning permission to convert some of the
outbuildings into holiday apartments, adding to the need for increased
privacy and security to the property.

The proposed new route, shown as A-B-C-D on Plan HA/030, would pass
through a kissing gate at point A and continue along a level surfaced path
though rough ground to point B where it would climb a slope to a
pedestrian gate at point C. From point C, the remaining route would cross
open pasture land to terminate at point D. The new route would have a
recorded width of 2m and would not be enclosed on either side. The new
route would be significantly more enjoyable as it would pass through more
open and scenic landscape and would also provide a more direct link to
Mottram St Andrew Footpath No. 22.

Concerns had been expressed regarding the effect of traffic noise on the
enjoyment of the new route between points C-D by the Ramblers
Association, Alderley Edge Footpath Society and the Peak and Northern
Footpath Society. These concerns had been allayed after a site visit had
allowed representatives of these organisations to see that this section of
the path would provide good views and would take the path where it would
naturally follow the dip in the land to and from point C. Diverting the path
D-C by any other route would involve taking the users across land of
steeper gradient.



39

Page 12

The Committee noted that no further objections had been received to the
proposal and considered that the new route would not be substantially less
convenient than the existing route. Diverting the footpath would be of
considerable benefit to the landowner in terms of enhancing the security
and privacy of the property. It was considered that the proposed route
would be a satisfactory alternative to the current one and that the legal
tests for the making and confirming of a diversion order were satisfied.

RESOLVED:

1 An Order be made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as
amended by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to divert Public
Footpath No. 2 Mottram St Andrew by creating a new section of
public footpath and extinguishing the current path as illustrated on
Plan No.HA/030 on the grounds that it is expedient in the interests
of the owner of the land crossed by the path.

2 Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event
of there being no objections within the period specified, the Order
be confirmed in the exercise of the powers conferred on the Council
by the said Acts.

3 In the event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire
East Borough Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing
or public inquiry.

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 - SECTION 119: APPLICATION FOR THE
DIVERSION OF PUBLIC FOOTPATH NO.5 (PART), PARISH OF
MOSTON (FORMERLY TETTON)

The Committee received a report which detailed an application from Mrs
Maureen Keeble, 1 Colleys Lane, Willaston, Nantwich (the applicant)
requesting the Council to make an Order under section 119 of the
Highways Act 1980 to divert part of Public Footpath No.5 in the parish of
Moston (formally Tetton).

In accordance with Section 119(1) of the Highways Act 1980 it was within
the Council’s discretion to make the Order if it appeared to the Council to
be expedient to do so in the interests of the public or of the owner, lessee
or occupier of the land crossed by the path.

The applicant owned the land over which the current and proposed
diversion ran. The section of Public Footpath No.5 Moston (formerly
Tetton) to be diverted ran along a farm drive and through a working farm
yard where there was a barn suffering from subsidence. This posed safety
issues to passing walkers and a temporary closure was already in place to
divert the path along the proposed diversion route.

The proposed new route would leave the road west of the current start of
the path. It would enter a pasture field to follow a northerly direction along



40

Page 13

the west side of a fishing lake before joining the current path. The new
path would have a recorded width of 2 metres throughout and would have
two gates; a kissing gate at the road and a pedestrian gate at a field
boundary.

The new route formed a more direct route for the public, as it disposed of
the current ‘dog leg’ through the farmyard. It also disposed of the possible
conflict between walkers and vehicular traffic on the driveway and formed
a more pleasant walk for the public in terms of its proximity to the wildlife
on the lakes and views of the same. For the landowner, the diversion
would provide greater privacy and security and removed the possibility of
danger to the public from the subsiding barn, which although temporary in
nature, required substantial work to resolve in the long-term.

The Committee noted that no objections had been received and
considered that the proposed route would not be substantially less
convenient than the existing route. Diverting the footpath would be of
benefit to the landowner and the public, particularly in terms of safety from
the subsiding barn. It was therefore considered that the proposed route
would be a satisfactory alternative to the current one and that the legal
tests for the making and confirming of a diversion order were satisfied.

RESOLVED:

1 An Order be made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as
amended by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to divert part of
Public Footpath No.5 Moston (formerly Tetton) by creating a new
section of public footpath and extinguishing the current path as
illustrated on Plan No.HA/029 on the grounds that it is expedient in
the interests of the owner of the land crossed by the path and of the
public.

2 Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event
of there being no objections within the period specified, the Order
be confirmed in the exercise of the powers conferred on the Council
by the said Acts.

3 In the event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire
East Borough Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing
or public inquiry.

CHESHIRE EAST RIGHTS OF WAY IMPROVEMENT PLAN 2011-2026:
APPROVAL OF STRATEGY AND NOTIFICATION OF IMPROVEMENT
PLAN PRIORITISATION METHODOLOGY

The Committee considered a report on the Cheshire East Rights of Way
Improvement Plan (ROWIP) 2001-2026.

Public consultation had been carried out on the draft ROWIP document, in
compliance with Section 61(1), (2) and (3) of the Countryside and Rights



Page 14

of Way Act 2000. Reponses to the consultations had been assessed and
changes made accordingly. The ROWIP document set out the strategy by
which the Council aimed to improve the public rights of way over the next
15 years. The improvements to be made would be set out in the
Implementation Plan.

Suggestions for improvement schemes had been submitted by members
of the public. In order for these to be fairly assessed, a prioritisation
methodology had been devised. Three options for this methodology had
been put before the Cheshire Local Access Forum at its meeting on 10
December 2010. The Forum had selected Option 2 — Focus on Need, as
the methodology to be used and had requested that an additional criteria
be added in relation to safety for non motorised uses. The Forum had also
suggested that the format be changed to a matrix and those improvement
schemes which plotted high benefit/low cost be taken forward.

The Implementation Plan covering 2011-2015 would be drawn up using
this methodology. Officer delegation was requested so that the final
version of the Implementation Plan could be prepared for approval by the
Portfolio Holder in March 2011. The Implementation Plan would be
presented to the March meeting of the Public Rights of Way Committee for
information.

RESOLVED:

1 The Portfolio Holder for Health and Wellbeing be recommended to
approve the Appendix to the Report as the Cheshire East Rights of
Way Improvement Plan 2011-2026.

2 The prioritisation methodology for projects to be delivered under the
Rights of Way Improvement Plan be noted.

3 Mike Taylor, Green Spaces Manager, in consultation with the
Chairman of the Public Rights of Way Committee, to confirm the
final form of the Implementation Plan for approval by the Portfolio
Holder for Health and Wellbeing, taking into account the
prioritisation methodology advised by the Cheshire Local Access
Forum.

The meeting commenced at 2.00 pm and concluded at 3.15 pm

Councillor S Wilkinson (Chairman)



Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank



3 3 3 3
) o ~ N
& 2 Page 16 3 8
™ ™ ™ ™
o~ M M R M M
‘:\ 7}‘904 .’~
s % 'S
*. e A
. L AN
L3 ~
. e N
e ~ QQ 3
‘\ .'~. AN
. e £
Y s »
Y S S oy
A o 7Y
N . - AN
“ ..--..... ~§~
A ey 8
. So
\J S
Y S
\ ) N
378300 N\ 1 “\ 378300
Y
%o [ “Q.
AR AN
\‘4/ 1 *
\ Y % ~§
‘\{ 1 ~~Q~
“ | ~'s
\‘ 1 AN
) kY 'Qs S
Adlington FP48
L
4
378200 Ei 378200
Weo
Parish
boundary
1 Tip Farm i
v,
Adlington FP35
378100 . s 378100
Bollington FP52 [
& | Ward Bdy Playing Field
CREENE . 5
D- Oe
r < S
T\ O@‘Q'& Pavilion
PC
® |135.9m KEY
Route to be stopped-up
378000 s =378000
) = Unaffected Public
S Estate . 2 Rights of Way
N 2 2 Z
A\ —===— Proposed new route
S
\z*;\' 3 PH Qo
w ) w ) w ) w )
© © © ©
N &) ) [&)
© o = N
o [=] o o
o o o o
+ Highways Act 1980 f\
=== | Proposed diversion of Bollington FP52, Plan No. This is a working copy of the definitive map | C1@Shire Eas.f@/p,
1:2.000 Ad||ngton FP35 (part) and Ad“ngton FP38 HA/040 and should not be used for legal purposes Council”
This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Cheshire East Council. 100049045 2010.




Page 17 Agenda Item 5

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
Public Rights of Way Committee

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2011
Report of: Greenspaces Manager
Subject/Title: Highways Act 1980 s.119

Application for the Diversion of Public Footpath No 52,
Parish of Bollington and Nos 35 (part) and 48, Parish of
Adlington

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The report outlines the investigation to divert Public Footpath No. 52, Parish of
Bollington and Nos 35 (part) and 48, Parish of Adlington. This includes a
discussion of consultations carried out in respect of the proposal and the legal
tests to be considered for a diversion order to be made. The proposal has
been put forward by the Public Rights of Way Unit as an application has been
made by the landowner concerned. The report makes a recommendation
based on that information, for quasi-judicial decision by Members as to
whether or not an Order should be made to divert the section of footpath
concerned.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 An Order be made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as amended
by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to divert Public Footpath No’s 52,
Parish of Bollington and No’s 35 (part) and 48, Parish of Adlington by creating
a new section of public footpath and extinguishing the current path as
illustrated on Plan No. HA/040 on the grounds that it is expedient in the
interests of the owner of the land crossed by the path.

2.2  Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event of there
being no objections within the period specified, the Order be confirmed in the
exercise of the powers conferred on the Council by the said Acts.

2.3 In the event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire East Borough
Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing or public inquiry.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 In accordance with Section 119(1) of the Highways Act 1980 it is within the
Council’s discretion to make the Order if it appears to the Council to be
expedient to do so in the interests of the public or of the owner, lessee or
occupier of the land crossed by the path. It is considered that the proposed
diversion is in the interests of the landowner for the reasons set out in
paragraphs 10.7 to 10.11 below.



3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

Page 18

Where objections to the making of an Order are made and not withdrawn, the
Order will fall to be confirmed by the Secretary of State. In considering
whether to confirm an Order the Secretary will, in addition to the matters
discussed at paragraph 3.1 above, have regard to:

e Whether the path is substantially less convenient to the public as a
consequence of the diversion.

And whether it is expedient to confirm the Order considering:

e The effect that the diversion would have on the enjoyment of the path or
way as a whole.

e The effect that the coming into operation of the Order would have as
respects other land served by the existing public right of way.

e The effect that any new public right of way created by the Order would
have as respects the land over which the rights are so created and any
land held with it.

Where there are no outstanding objections, it is for the Council to determine
whether to confirm the Order in accordance with the matters referred to in
paragraph 3.2 above.

The proposed route will not be ‘substantially less convenient’ than the existing
route and diverting the footpath will be of considerable benefit to the
landowner in terms of enhancing the security and privacy of the property. Itis
considered that the proposed route will be a satisfactory alternative to the
current one and that the legal tests for the making and confirming of a
diversion order are satisfied.

Wards Affected

Prestbury and Tytherington
Bollington and Disley

Local Ward Members

Councillor H Davenport, Councillor M Davies, Councillor D Thompson,
Councillor P Findlow, Councillor T Jackson and Councillor B Livesley

Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health

Not applicable
Financial Implications

Not applicable



8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Page 19

Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

Once an Order is made it may be the subject of objections. If objections are
not withdrawn, this removes the power of the local highway authority to
confirm the order itself, and may lead to a hearing/an inquiry. It follows that
the Committee decision may be confirmed or not confirmed. This process
may involve additional legal support and resources

Risk Management
Not applicable
Background and Options

An application has been received from Mr and Mrs S Wall, Tip Farm, Lodge
Brow, Bollington, SK10 5SN requesting that the Council make an Order under
section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 to divert Public Footpath No’s 52,
Parish of Bollington and 35 (part) and 48, Parish of Adlington .

Public Footpath No 52, Parish of Bollington commences at its junction with
Sugar Lane at OS grid reference SJ 9313 7813 and runs in a west north west
direction through woodland to OS grid reference SJ 9312 7814.

Public Footpath No 35, Parish of Adlington, commences at OS grid reference
SJ 9312 7814 and runs in a west north westerly direction continuing through
the woodland, over a pasture field and bearing south westerly before turning
north north westerly to pass between buildings through the yard of Tip Farm.
Upon meeting a wall (point B), the path turns west and then north into a
second pasture field to follow a generally north north westerly direction along
the western field boundary crossing the Middlewood Way to continue in a
generally north westerly direction across three further fields to its junction with
Holehouse Lane at OS grid reference SJ 9240 7882.

Public Footpath No 48, Parish of Adlington, commences at OS grid reference
SJ 9308 7826 and runs in a south westerly direction through woodland and
along the metalled drive of Tip Farm, to terminate at OS grid reference SJ
9301 7817.

The sections of these paths to be diverted are shown by solid black lines on
Plan No. HA/040. The proposed diversion is illustrated on the same plan with
a black dashed lines.

Mr and Mrs S Wall own the land over which the current paths and the
proposed diversion run. Under section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 the
Council may accede to an applicant’s request, if it considers it expedient in the
interests of the landowner to make an order to divert the footpath.

The sections of Public Footpath No’s 52, Parish of Bollington and No’s 35
(part) and 48, Parish of Adlington to be diverted lead to and run through the
property of the landowner. To provide security and privacy to the applicant’s



10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

Page 20

property, the proposed diversion route will take path users away from the
applicant’s house and out-buildings and will allow better land management in
relation to livestock.

The proposed diversion route would start at point A on plan HA/040, rising up
steps in a northerly direction to a gap in the fence. From this point, it would be
fenced to a width of 2.5m as it continues in a north north westerly direction
alongside the eastern side of the first pasture field to leave the field via a slope
to a second gap that leads onto the farm drive.

The route would then cross the farm drive to enter the next field via a third
gap. This section would be similarly fenced to a minimum width of 2.5m and
would continue in a northerly direction along the eastern side of the pasture
field to terminate at fourth and final gap (point G) where it would join Adlington
FP36.

Further to this, the current route of Adlington FP48 that follows the farm drive
would be shortened to start at the third gap. The route would run parallel to
the drive along the northern grass verge and terminate at point F gradually
bearing north westerly over the final 11m (approx.). It would be fenced to a
width of 2.5m.

Of benefit to the public, the new route would link Adlington FP35 with
Adlington FP36 increasing user safety by providing a path parallel to but away
from the narrow road, Lodge Brow. Furthermore, it would be more accessible
to users since there would be no barriers.

Ward Councillors have been consulted about the proposal. No comments
were received.

Bollington Town Council and Adlington Parish Council have been consulted
and did not raise any objections.

The statutory undertakers have also been consulted and have raised no
objections to the proposed diversion. If a diversion order is made, existing
rights of access for the statutory undertakers to their apparatus and equipment
are protected.

The user groups have been consulted. The Ramblers Association and the
Peak and Northern Footpath Society registered that they do not object to the
proposal. No further comments were received.

The Council’s Nature Conservation Officer has been consulted and has raised
no objection to the proposals.

An assessment in relation to Disability Discrimination Legislation has been
carried out by the PROW Maintenance and Enforcement Officer for the area
and it is considered that the proposed diversion is an improvement on the old
route.



Page 21

11.0 Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting
the report writer:

Name: Marianne Nixon

Designation: Public Path Orders Officer

Tel No: 01606 271843

Email: marianne.nixon@cheshireeast.gov.uk
PROW File: 003D+028D/424




368

000

396400

800

l Parish Boundary
I

o)

3690

NS~
Greenway Bridg =\\'\\
294.8 \ \

»

Key
= nath to be stopped up

= = = Proposed footpath

==mnn Exjsting Footpath

3688

0C

0C

\[297.6m
/__\

&

R

o

N . .
Proposed Diversion of Footpath | scae1:2,500 =5
WIIdboarCIough No 32 (pt) Plan No. This is a working copy of the definitive map CheShire Ea;@\\,

& Footpath Sutton No . 23 (pt) HA/034 and should not be used for legal purposes Council?

Cheshire East Council. 100049045 2010.

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.




Page 23 Agenda ltem 6

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Public Rights of Way Committee

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2011
Report of: Greenspaces Manager
Subject/Title: Highways Act 1980 s.119

Proposed Diversion of Public Footpath No. 32 (part),
Parish of Wildboarclough and Public Footpath No. 23
(part), Parish of Sutton

1.0

1.1

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

Report Summary

The report outlines the investigation to divert part of Public Footpath No.32 (pt) in
the Parish of Wildboarclough and Public Footpath No. 23 (pt) in the Parish of
Sutton. This includes a discussion of consultations carried out in respect of the
proposal and the legal tests to be considered for a diversion order to be made.
The proposal has been put forward by the Public Rights of Way Unit as a means
of remedying a long standing anomaly whereby the Definitive line has not been
useable. The report makes a recommendation based on that information, for
quasi-judicial decision by Members as to whether or not an Order should be
made to divert the section of footpaths concerned.

Recommendation

An Order be made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as amended by
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to divert part of Public Footpath No.32
Wildboarclough and part of Public Footpath No. 23, Sutton by creating a new
sections of public footpaths and extinguishing the current paths as illustrated on
Plan No. HA/034 on the grounds that it is expedient in the interests of the owner
of the land crossed by the path.

Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event of there being
no objections within the period specified, the Order be confirmed in the exercise
of the powers conferred on the Council by the said Acts.

In the event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire East Borough
Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing or public inquiry.

Reasons for Recommendations

In accordance with Section 119(1) of the Highways Act 1980 it is within the
Council’s discretion to make the Order if it appears to the Council to be expedient
to do so in the interests of the public or of the owner, lessee or occupier of the
land crossed by the path. It is considered that the proposed diversion is in the
interests of the public for the reasons set out in paragraph 10.4 and 10.5 below.



3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

Page 24

Where objections to the making of an Order are made and not withdrawn, the
Order will fall to be confirmed by the Secretary of State. In considering whether
to confirm an Order the Secretary will, in addition to the matters discussed at
paragraph 3.1 above, have regard to:

e Whether the path is substantially less convenient to the public as a
consequence of the diversion.

And whether it is expedient to confirm the Order considering:

e The effect that the diversion would have on the enjoyment of the path or way
as a whole.

e The effect that the coming into operation of the Order would have as respects
other land served by the existing public right of way.

e The effect that any new public right of way created by the Order would have
as respects the land over which the rights are so created and any land held
with it.

Where there are no outstanding objections, it is for the Council to determine
whether to confirm the Order in accordance with the matters referred to in
paragraph 3.2 above.

No objections to the proposal have been received through the informal
consultation process. The proposed route will not be ‘substantially less
convenient’ than the existing route and diverting the footpath will be of benefit to
the public, particularly in terms of accessibility. It is therefore considered that the
proposed route will be a satisfactory alternative to the current one and that the
legal tests for the making and confirming of a diversion order are satisfied.

Wards Affected
Macclesfield Forest Ward
Local Ward Members
Councillor M Asquith, Councillor H Gaddum and Councillor L Smetham
Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health

The proposal supports the following policies and initiatives of the Cheshire East
Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2011-2026:

- Policy H3: Public rights of way and green infrastructure: Protect and enhance
our public rights of way and green infrastructure and endeavour to create new
links where beneficial for health, safety or access to green spaces. |Initiative:
‘Leisure routes for cyclists, horse riders and walkers’



6.2

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

Page 25

- Policy H2: Promotion of active travel and healthy activities: Work in partnership
to promote walking, cycling and horse riding as active travel options and
healthy activities. Initiative ‘Public information on the public rights of way
network’

The development of new walking, cycling and horse riding routes for local
residents and visitors alike is aligned with the health and wellbeing objectives
and priorities of the Council as stated in the Corporate Plan (2.1.1 Encouraging
healthier lifestyles) and the Health and Wellbeing Service commitment to the
Changed4Life initiative.

Financial Implications
Not applicable
Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

Once an Order is made it may be the subject of objections. If objections are not
withdrawn, this removes the power of the local highway authority to confirm the
order itself, and may lead to a hearing/an inquiry. It follows that the Committee
decision may be confirmed or not confirmed. This process may involve
additional legal support and resources

Risk Management
Not applicable
Background and Options

The Public Rights of Way Unit has investigated the alignment of Footpath no. 32,
Wildboarclough and Footpath no. 23, Sutton and in order to correct the situation

on the ground is proposing that the Council make an Order under section 119 of
the Highways Act 1980 to divert part of the footpath.

Public Footpath No. 32, Wildboarclough, commences at its junction with
Greenway Road (UY 1319) at OS grid reference SJ 39629 36871 and runs in a
generally northerly direction across pasture fields to its junction with Public
Footpath no.23, Sutton at OS grid reference 39631 36871 just south of Oaken
Clough stream. Footpath 23 continues northerly across the stream and rough
ground for a short distance to OS grid reference SJ 39630 369051. The section
of path to be diverted is shown by a solid black line on Plan No. HA/034 running
between points A-B-C. The proposed diversion is illustrated on the same plan
with a black dashed line between points A-D-C.

Mr R May owns the land over which the current path and the proposed path run.
He has given his agreement to this proposal. Under section 119 of the Highways



10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

Page 26

Act 1980 the Council may make a Diversion Order if it considers it expedient in
the interests of the public and/or the landowner to make an order to divert the
footpath.

The section of Public Footpath No. 32, Wildboarclough and Public Footpath No.
23, Sutton to be diverted runs across sloping terrain over several fields of upland
pasture, it crosses a stone wall and a stream just to the north of the parish
boundary where there appears never to have been a stile/bridge to facilitate the
path. It is about 265 metres in length. This length of footpath appears never to
have been available to the public and it may be that it was poorly drafted onto the
Definitive Map at the time of the original surveys in the early 1950’s.

As a consequence of the difficulty of the Definitive routes a permissive line has
developed on the ground. This route is the proposed diversion and follows more
level terrain along the valley. A short footbridge would be required adjacent to
the landowner’s vehicular crossing shown by FB on plan no. HA/034 and a
wicket gate adjacent to an existing field gate at the point marked WG. A short
section between points 1 and 2 will be slightly widened and have a stoned
surface. A new kissing gate will be put in to replace the current stile at the
roadside on Greenway Road, this is not on the diversion. For reasons of ease of
use and accessibility it is felt that the proposed route would be in the interests of
the pubilic.

Ward Councillors have been consulted about the proposal, no comments were
received.

Wildboarclough & Macclesfield Forest and Sutton Parish Councils have been
consulted and no comments received.

The statutory undertakers have also been consulted and have raised no
objections to the proposed diversion. If a diversion order is made, existing rights
of access for the statutory undertakers to their apparatus and equipment are
protected.

The user groups have been consulted and no objections have been received.
East Cheshire Ramblers have commented that ‘the proposed diversion is a
suitable solution to regularise the alignment’ and are happy providing the
furniture and work specified is undertaken.

Natural England has been consulted and has no comment to make to the
proposals.

An assessment in relation to Disability Discrimination Legislation has been
carried out by the PROW Maintenance and Enforcement Officer for the area and
it is considered that the proposed diversion is an improvement on the old route.



Page 27

11.0 Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting the
report writer:

Name: Clare Hibbert

Designation: Definitive Map Officer

Tel No: 01606 271823

Email: clare.hibbert@cheshireeast.gov.uk
PROW File: 315D/416




Page 28

397700 397800 397900 398000 398100
R
o 0' o
o 4 o
Q * o
N~ * =
N~ 0' ~
<) A 5
*
Ad
R
R4
R
¢"
0/'
e
&
N
X 4
To
o Qy o
8 0\ 8
© 7 ©
N~ r ~
™ F )
’
’
’
/ \
/ w Rainow FP83
'
1
H
D ]
ot — .’
]
]
(]
o |} o
Q S
b @
© ©
S N~
@ Bank Clough Farm ™
.
Pond ! D
o I
.F d i I
Bank Clough or Burton Springs [l N
&
ke
8 Llowerhill Farm S =]
S =
© ©
S N~
o« )
v
LY
LY
LY
“9,
[ =2
ve
3
o 2 o
Q S
© b1 ©
© e ©
N~ 3 ~
™ \ ™
)
[
)
[]
KEY !
[}
.
‘I
e Right of way to be stopped up :‘ p
. . - g
= = = Proposed Diversion “, ',x'
. S R
o «===== Other Rights of Way AN -~ S
Q . » S
8= * s’ @
N San ’o’ N
™ .“ " )
397700 397800 397900 398000 398100
|| Proposed Diversion of par’( of Plan No. This is a working copy of the definitive map Cheshire Eapt//\——
1:2 500 PU b|IC Footpath Rainow NO 8 HA/037 and should not be used for legal purposes Council
This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright.

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Cheshire East Council. 100049045 2010.




Page 29 Agenda ltem 7

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
Public Rights of Way Committee

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2011
Report of: Greenspaces Manager
Subject/Title: Highways Act 1980 S119

Application for the Diversion of part of Public Footpath
No. 8 in the Parish of Rainow

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The report outlines the investigation to divert part of Public Footpath No. 8 in
the Parish of Rainow. This includes a discussion of consultations carried out
in respect of the proposal and the legal tests to be considered for a diversion
order to be made. The proposal has been put forward by the Public Rights of
Way Unit in the interests of the public and in the interests of the owner of the
land crossed by the path. The report makes a recommendation based on that
information, for quasi-judicial decision by Members as to whether or not an
Order should be made to divert the section of footpath concerned.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 An Order be made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as amended
by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to divert part of Public Footpath No.
8 in the parish of Rainow by creating a new section of public footpath and
extinguishing the current path as illustrated on Plan No. HA/037 on the
grounds that it is expedient in the interests of the public and in the interests of
the owner of the land crossed by the path.

2.2  Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event of there
being no objections within the period specified, the Order be confirmed in the
exercise of the powers conferred on the Council by the said Acts.

2.3 Inthe event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire East Borough
Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing or public inquiry.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 In accordance with Section 119(1) of the Highways Act 1980 it is within the
Council’s discretion to make the Order if it appears to the Council to be
expedient to do so in the interests of the public or of the owner, lessee or
occupier of the land crossed by the path. It is considered that the proposed
diversion is in the interests of the public and in the interests of the owner of the
land crossed by the path for the reasons set out in paragraph 10.7 below.



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

Page 30

Where objections to the making of an Order are made and not withdrawn, the
Order will fall to be confirmed by the Secretary of State. In considering
whether to confirm an Order the Secretary will, in addition to the matters
discussed at paragraph 3.1 above, have regard to:

e Whether the path is substantially less convenient to the public as a
consequence of the diversion.

And whether it is expedient to confirm the Order considering:

e The effect that the diversion would have on the enjoyment of the path or
way as a whole.

e The effect that the coming into operation of the Order would have as
respects other land served by the existing public right of way.

e The effect that any new public right of way created by the Order would
have as respects the land over which the rights are so created and any
land held with it.

Where there are no outstanding objections, it is for the Council to determine
whether to confirm the Order in accordance with the matters referred to in
paragraph 3.2 above.

Initial informal consultations have not indicated that objections to an order are
likely. Diverting the footpath onto the proposed route would create a more
accessible, usable footpath, with a level surface, less path furniture and an
increased width. It would also provide better views of the surrounding
countryside for walkers and lead to savings for the authority’s maintenance
budget. In addition, moving the footpath away from the landowners home
(Burton Springs Farm) will allow him to improve the privacy and security of his
property. The diversion has been sought by the Council to resolve long-
standing problems with the footpath, and to create a more accessible, usable
route on the ground for the public. It is considered that the proposed diversion
follows the best possible route available. It is therefore considered that the
proposed route will be a satisfactory alternative to the current one and that the
legal tests for the making and confirming of a diversion order are satisfied.

Wards Affected
Bollington and Disley.
Local Ward Members

Councillor M Davies, Councillor D Thompson and Councillor H Davenport.



6.0

6.1

6.2

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

Page 31

Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health

The proposal supports the following policies and initiatives of the Cheshire
East Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2011-2026:

- Policy H3: Public rights of way and green infrastructure: Protect and enhance
our public rights of way and green infrastructure and endeavour to create
new links where beneficial for health, safety or access to green spaces.

Initiative: ‘Leisure routes for cyclists, horse riders and walkers’

- Policy H2: Promotion of active travel and healthy activities: Work in
partnership to promote walking, cycling and horse riding as active travel
options and healthy activities. Initiative ‘Public information on the public
rights of way network’

The development of new walking, cycling and horseriding routes for local
residents and visitors alike is aligned with the health and wellbeing objectives
and priorities of the Council as stated in the Corporate Plan (2.1.1
Encouraging healthier lifestyles) and the Health and Wellbeing Service
commitment to the Change4Life initiative.

Financial Implications
Not applicable
Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

Once an Order is made it may be the subject of objections. If objections are
not withdrawn, this removes the power of the local highway authority to
confirm the order itself, and may lead to a hearing/an inquiry. It follows that
the Committee decision may be confirmed or not confirmed. This process
may involve additional legal support and resources

Risk Management
Not applicable
Background and Options

The agreement of the landowner to the diversion of part of Public Footpath
No. 8 in the parish of Rainow has been obtained. Under Section 119 of the
Highways Act 1980 the Borough Council may make a Diversion Order if it
considers that it is expedient in the interests of the public or of the owner,
lessee or occupier of the land crossed by the path.

Public Footpath No. 8 Rainow commences at its junction with Footpath No. 6
Rainow at OS grid reference SJ 9802 7646 and runs in a generally north
westerly direction to OS grid reference SJ 9788 7682 and its junction with
Bank Lane. The section of path to be diverted is shown by a solid black line



10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

Page 32

on Plan HA/037 running between points A-D. The proposed diversion is
illustrated on the same plan between points A-E.

Mr Christopher Leek owns the land over which the current route and the
proposed route would run. He has provided written consent and support for
the proposal.

The existing definitive line of Public Footpath No. 8 Rainow has been
unavailable for numerous years. It is difficult for the public to use due to the
nature of the terrain and it is possible that the path was inaccurately recorded
on the Definitive Map and Statement in the first place.

The current line of the footpath runs in a northerly direction across a field and then
through the garden to the rear of Burton Springs Farm. It passes in extremely
close proximity to the house, directly alongside numerous windows of the
property. This section of the footpath is also very narrow, approximately 1 metre,
and enclosed on both sides, by the wall of the house on the eastern side and a
retaining garden wall to the west of the property.

As the footpath leaves the garden area there is a steep bank to climb, with a
gradient of approximately 1:2. It then crosses another field with a cross slope
which is difficult to traverse due to its gradient, which is approximately 1:4. As it
reaches Bank Lane there is another steep bank for users to descend. The
definitive line is obstructed by walls and fences in a number of places. Re-
instating the footpath on the original alignment would be expensive for the
authorities’ maintenance budget, three stiles or gates would be required (at points
B, C and D on Plan No. HA/037), as well as approximately 15 steps up the bank
leading from the garden (point C on Plan No. HA/037). Approximately 4-6 steps
down the steep bank to Bank Lane (at point D on Plan No. HA/037) would also be
required. The length of the section of footpath to be diverted is approximately 171
metres.

The proposed route runs in a north easterly direction across a field to the east of
Burton Springs Farm until it reaches Bank Lane. There are no steep sections for
walkers to traverse and it offers a level surface. It also requires only one kissing
gate (where the path reaches Bank Lane at point E on Plan No. HA/037) providing
a much more easily accessible route for walkers. The proposed route would be
unenclosed with a width of two metres, providing an increased width. It also offers
better open views of the surrounding countryside. The length of the proposed
route for the footpath is approximately 130 metres, 41 metres shorter than the
current route. In addition, the proposal moves the footpath closer to Public
Footpath Rainow No. 83, creating a useful link for walkers. Taking walkers away
from Burton Springs Farm will allow the landowner to improve the privacy and
security of his property considerably.

Ward Councillors have been consulted about the proposal. No comments
have been received.

Rainow Parish Council has been consulted. They have responded to state
that they agree to the proposed changes but stress the need for a stile/gate,



10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

11.0

Page 33

and for clear signposting at both ends of the diversion. If a diversion Order is
made and is successful, a kissing gate will be installed at point E on plan no.
HA/037 and the route will be appropriately signposted.

The statutory undertakers have also been consulted and have raised no
objections to the proposed diversion. If a diversion order is made, existing
rights of access for the statutory undertakers to their apparatus and equipment
are protected.

The user groups have been consulted. Peak and Northern Footpaths Society
have responded to state that they have no objection to the proposal. The
Ramblers Association have responded to state that they ‘welcome this
suggested solution to a long standing problem at Burton Springs Farn’,
provided that some improvement to the surface is carried out and the new
route appropriately signed. Before signing the Article 2 ‘Certificate of
Satisfaction’ and confirming an Order, Cheshire East Council would ensure
that any necessary surfacing works are carried out on the new route to bring it
up to an acceptable standard and that the route is appropriately signed.

The Council’s Nature Conservation Officer has been consulted and has raised
no objection to the proposals.

An assessment in relation to Disability Discrimination Legislation has been
carried out by the PROW Network and Enforcement Officer for the area and it
is considered that the proposed diversion is an improvement on the old route.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting
the report writer:

Name: Hannah Flannery

Designation: Definitive Map Officer

Tel No: 01606 271809

Email: hannah.flannery@cheshireeast.gov.uk
PROW File: 253D/419



395200

S 2
©
Pgge 34 g
< 2]
KEY Y
Route to be stopped-up
Unaffected Public
""""" Rights of Wi
ights of Way 0«9; Al
24
—=—=—— Proposed new route %
1 ]
]
]
)
]
‘I Fyy
]
)
]
]
1 ]
]
[ ]
§
§
[ ]
]
[ ]
1
371800 £ 1 371800
=
S
&t
B
,
1
>
A}
‘.
‘.
‘.
A}
\ )
gD
N
1
1
Higher Ridgegate Farm |}
3 1
Q% ! : .264 7
.7m
371600 % TR \ 371600
X \ : c
) .
2
e
< Sunnycroft A
o~ @\ 234.2m
*
0
.
9
2
o V. Sluice
4
4
’
G
&
&
v/ /s
o § 233.5m
2 (2]
y & ®
0
» /&
L/ N
2 \oQ R
%)
233.4m
T . [ ]
w & T
© I %
a 8 o
) g o
o 3 3
S S =
— nghways A‘:'Dt 1 9-80 Plan No. This is a working copy of the definitive map CheShire Eag@v
1:2.500 Proposed DlverSIOn Of SUtton FP9 HA/043 and should not be used for legal purposes Council 7

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Cheshire East Council. 100049045 2010.

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright.




Page 35 Agenda Item 8

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
Public Rights of Way Committee

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2011
Report of: Greenspaces Manager
Subject/Title: Highways Act 1980 s.119

Application for the Diversion of Public Footpath No 9
(part), Parish of Sutton

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The report outlines the investigation to divert part of Public Footpath No 9 in
the Parish of Sutton. This includes a discussion of consultations carried out in
respect of the proposal and the legal tests to be considered for a diversion
order to be made. The proposal has been put forward by the Public Rights of
Way Unit as an application has been made by the landowner concerned. The
report makes a recommendation based on that information, for quasi-judicial
decision by Members as to whether or not an Order should be made to divert
the section of footpath concerned.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 An Order be made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as amended
by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to divert part of Public Footpath No
9 Sutton by creating a new section of public footpath and extinguishing the
current path as illustrated on Plan No. HA/043 on the grounds that it is
expedient in the interests of the owner of the land crossed by the path.

2.2  Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event of there
being no objections within the period specified, the Order be confirmed in the
exercise of the powers conferred on the Council by the said Acts.

2.3 In the event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire East Borough
Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing or public inquiry.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 In accordance with Section 119(1) of the Highways Act 1980 it is within the
Council’s discretion to make the Order if it appears to the Council to be
expedient to do so in the interests of the public or of the owner, lessee or
occupier of the land crossed by the path. It is considered that the proposed
diversion is in the interests of the landowner for the reasons set out in
paragraph 10.5 to 10.9 below.



3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

41

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

Page 36

Where objections to the making of an Order are made and not withdrawn, the
Order will fall to be confirmed by the Secretary of State. In considering
whether to confirm an Order the Secretary will, in addition to the matters
discussed at paragraph 3.1 above, have regard to:

e Whether the path is substantially less convenient to the public as a
consequence of the diversion.

And whether it is expedient to confirm the Order considering:

e The effect that the diversion would have on the enjoyment of the path or
way as a whole.

e The effect that the coming into operation of the Order would have as
respects other land served by the existing public right of way.

e The effect that any new public right of way created by the Order would
have as respects the land over which the rights are so created and any
land held with it.

Where there are no outstanding objections, it is for the Council to determine

whether to confirm the Order in accordance with the matters referred to in

paragraph 3.2 above.

The proposed route will not be ‘substantially less convenient’ than the existing

route and diverting the footpath will be of considerable benefit to the

landowner in terms of enhancing the security and privacy of the property. Itis
considered that the proposed route will be a satisfactory alternative to the

current one and that the legal tests for the making and confirming of a

diversion order are satisfied.

Wards Affected

Macclesfield Forest

Local Ward Members

Councillor M Asquith, Councillor H Gaddum, Councillor L Smetham

Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health

Not applicable
Financial Implications

Not applicable



8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

Page 37

Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

Once an Order is made it may be the subject of objections. If objections are
not withdrawn, this removes the power of the local highway authority to
confirm the order itself, and may lead to a hearing/an inquiry. It follows that
the Committee decision may be confirmed or not confirmed. This process
may involve additional legal support and resources

Risk Management
Not applicable
Background and Options

An application has been received from Miss Wendy Dignan, Higher Ridgegate
Farm, Clarke Lane, Langley, Cheshire, SK11 ONE, requesting that the Council
make an Order under section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 to divert part of
Public Footpath No 39 in the Parish of Sutton.

Public Footpath No. 9, Sutton, commences at its junction with Clarke Road
(point A on Plan No HA/043) at OS grid reference SJ 9537 7158 and runs in a
generally northerly direction through the yard of Higher Ridgegate Farm and a
pasture field before bearing east north easterly to descend within a second
pasture field to OS grid reference SJ 9544 7177 (point B on Plan No. HA/043)
covering a distance of 254m.

The section of path to be diverted is shown by a solid black line on Plan No.
HA/043. The proposed diversion is illustrated on the same plan with a black
dashed line between points C-D-B.

The current path runs across land owned by Miss W Dignan. Under section
119 of the Highways Act 1980 the Council may accede to an applicant’s
request, if it considers it expedient in the interests of the landowner to make
an order to divert the footpath.

The section of Public Footpath No 9, Sutton to be diverted runs through the
property of the landowner (Higher Ridgegate Farm) and through pasture
fields, giving rise to concerns relating to land management.

The proposed new route (C-D-B) would pass through a gap at point C on Plan
No HA/043, from Clarke Lane and continue in a northerly direction alongside a
wall to the east, to reach a kissing gate (point D). This section would be
fenced to a width of 2.5m and cover a distance of 183m.

Past the kissing gate, the route would descend in a north-north-westerly
direction to reach the current termination at point B.

Apart from the fenced section, the new route would have a width of 2m and
would not be enclosed on either side.



10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

11.0

Page 38

The proposed route would be shorter by 71m, less obstructed (one kissing
gate to negotiate instead of three field gates), provide better views across the
open countryside and would take path users away from livestock (horses) on
the applicant’s property and separate them from livestock on adjacent land
owned by the applicant.

Ward Councillors have been consulted about the proposal. No comments
have been received.

Sutton Parish Council has been consulted and registered no objection.

The statutory undertakers have also been consulted and have raised no
objections to the proposed diversion. If a diversion order is made, existing
rights of access for the statutory undertakers to their apparatus and equipment
are protected.

The user groups have been consulted. The Ramblers Association and the
Peak and Northern Footpath Society registered no objections. No further
comments were received in relation to the proposed diversion.

The Council’s Nature Conservation Officer has been consulted and has raised
no objection to the proposals.

An assessment in relation to Disability Discrimination Legislation has been
carried out by the PROW Maintenance and Enforcement Officer for the area
and it is considered that the proposed diversion is an improvement on the old
route.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting
the report writer:

Name: Marianne Nixon

Designation: Public Path Orders Officer

Tel No: 01606 271843

Email: marianne.nixon@cheshireeast.gov.uk
PROW File: 248D/421




Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank



398700 398800 40 399000 399100
o o
8 N\ Al 7 AN =
<] \ \ o
N~ N~
(32l ™
o—
1 ™~
§
l
u
"
L]
L]
§
"
u
[l
L]
o ] o
3 // l ]
(<) B (=)
N : N
™ / : ™
L
. Browtop Farm [%
u
Ll
Ll
Ll
» :
(&) l
S ]
i
@ "
$ :
o ” i o
3 S 3
N ' N
m / ‘rbo A ™
/
L4
4 \
1
nge Farm
o o
o o
~ ~
~ i ~
5 Footbridge ®
KG 25
()
KG \—-\
/ =" H
] o= 5 \
—'-' L
o 4 o
g \ ﬁ g
~ o ~
&L &
}"
o 1 o
o o
Yel [Ye]
N~ N~
N~ ~
[32] ™
\’__
398700 398800 398900 399000 399100
. . . N
Proposed Diversion of Public q
— FOOtpath KettleShUIme no. 25 (pal't Plan NO. This is a working copy of the definitive map CheSh’re EaSt/\\:
HA/035 and should not be used for legal purposes Council?
1:2,500
This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Cheshire East Council. 100049045 2010.




Page 41 Agenda ltem 9

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
Public Rights of Way Committee

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2011
Report of: Greenspaces Manager
Subject/Title: Highways Act 1980 s.119

Proposed Diversion of Public Footpath no. 25 (part),
Parish of Kettleshulme

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The report outlines the investigation to divert part of Public Footpath No.25 in
the Parish of Kettleshulme. This includes a discussion of consultations carried
out in respect of the proposal and the legal tests to be considered for a
diversion order to be made. The proposal has been applied for by the
landowner with the support of the Public Rights of Way Unit as a means of
remedying a long standing anomaly whereby the Definitive line has been
difficult to use. The report makes a recommendation based on that
information, for quasi-judicial decision by Members as to whether or not an
Order should be made to divert the section of footpath concerned.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 An Order be made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as amended
by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to divert part of Public Footpath
No.25, Kettleshulme by creating a new section of public footpath and
extinguishing the current path as illustrated on Plan No. HA/035 on the
grounds that it is expedient in the interests of the owner of the land crossed by
the path and the public.

2.2  Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event of there
being no objections within the period specified, the Order be confirmed in the
exercise of the powers conferred on the Council by the said Acts.

2.3 In the event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire East Borough
Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing or public inquiry.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 In accordance with Section 119(1) of the Highways Act 1980 it is within the
Council’s discretion to make the Order if it appears to the Council to be
expedient to do so in the interests of the public or of the owner, lessee or
occupier of the land crossed by the path. It is considered that the proposed
diversion is in the interests of the landowner and the public for the reasons set
out in paragraph 10.4 and 10.5 below.



3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

Page 42

Where objections to the making of an Order are made and not withdrawn, the
Order will fall to be confirmed by the Secretary of State. In considering
whether to confirm an Order the Secretary will, in addition to the matters
discussed at paragraph 3.1 above, have regard to:

e Whether the path is substantially less convenient to the public as a
consequence of the diversion.

And whether it is expedient to confirm the Order considering:

e The effect that the diversion would have on the enjoyment of the path or
way as a whole.

e The effect that the coming into operation of the Order would have as
respects other land served by the existing public right of way.

e The effect that any new public right of way created by the Order would
have as respects the land over which the rights are so created and any
land held with it.

Where there are no outstanding objections, it is for the Council to determine
whether to confirm the Order in accordance with the matters referred to in
paragraph 3.2 above.

No objections to the proposal have been received through the informal
consultation process. The proposed route will not be ‘substantially less
convenient’ than the existing route and diverting the footpath will be of benefit
to the landowner, particularly in terms of privacy and security and to the public
in terms of accessibility and convenience . It is therefore considered that the
proposed route will be a satisfactory alternative to the current one and that the
legal tests for the making and confirming of a diversion order are satisfied.

Wards Affected

Bollington and Disley Ward

Local Ward Members

Councillor M Asquith, Councillor H Gaddum and Councillor L Smetham

Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health

The proposal supports the following policies and initiatives of the Cheshire
East Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2011-2026:

- Policy H3: Public rights of way and green infrastructure: Protect and enhance
our public rights of way and green infrastructure and endeavour to create
new links where beneficial for health, safety or access to green spaces.

Initiative: ‘Leisure routes for cyclists, horse riders and walkers’



6.2

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

Page 43

- Policy H2: Promotion of active travel and healthy activities: Work in
partnership to promote walking, cycling and horse riding as active travel
options and healthy activities. Initiative ‘Public information on the public
rights of way network’

The development of new walking, cycling and horse riding routes for local residents
and visitors alike is aligned with the health and wellbeing objectives and priorities of
the Council as stated in the Corporate Plan (2.1.1 Encouraging healthier lifestyles)
and the Health and Wellbeing Service commitment to the Change4Life initiative.

Financial Implications
Not applicable
Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

Once an Order is made it may be the subject of objections. If objections are not
withdrawn, this removes the power of the local highway authority to confirm the
order itself, and may lead to a hearing/an inquiry. It follows that the Committee
decision may be confirmed or not confirmed. This process may involve
additional legal support and resources

Risk Management
Not applicable
Background and Options

The alignment of Footpath no.25 Kettleshulme (part) has been the subject of
previous investigations by Cheshire County Council in the early 1990’s who
considered that the original recording of this section of the path was probably an
anomaly and that a Definitive Map Modification Order might be necessary to rectify
the situation; in the meantime a permissive path was put in on the ground that has
been used by the public. The legal alignment has never been resolved, hence this
current application from Mr Ketley, the landowner.

Public Footpath No. 25, Kettleshulme, commences at its junction with Dunge Lane
(UW 2547) at OS grid reference SJ 39892 37827 and runs in a generally southerly
direction along the access road to Dunge Farm then across fields to the parish
boundary with Rainow FP no. 10 at OS grid reference SJ 39887 37726. The section
of path to be diverted is shown by a solid black line on Plan No. HA/035 running
between points A- B. The proposed diversion is illustrated on the same plan with a
black dashed line also between points A-C-B.

Mr D Ketley owns the land over which the current path and the proposed path
run. Under section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 the Council may make a
Diversion Order if it considers it expedient in the interests of the public and/or the
landowner to make an order to divert the footpath.



10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

Page 44

The section of Public Footpath No. 25, Kettleshulme to be diverted runs across
steeply sloping terrain close to the rear of Dunge Farm and at the height of the
first story window. This raises serious concerns with regard to privacy and
security for the landowner and provides a very steep surface for walkers that is
difficult to negotiate and liable to slippage. It is about 156 metres in length.

Following investigations by Cheshire County Council and in lieu of a modification
order being made, the landowner with the Council’'s agreement signed a
permissive route which runs to the west and front of the farm; this is the route
that is now proposed as the diversion. It follows the driveway to the property for a
short distance then crosses an open yard leading onto a grass/ stoned track that
skirts the immediate property boundary and offers an attractive aspect over a
small valley of rhododendron bushes. This is a part of Dunge Valley Gardens
that is open to the public during the summer season. There is a small sleeper
footbridge on the route over Hodgel Brook and kissing gates will be installed at
two points where there are currently stiles, marked KG on Plan no. HA/035. This
route is approximately the same length as the current one. For reasons of the
privacy and security of the landowner and occupier of Dunge Farm and for the
improved accessibility the route offers to the public; it is felt that the proposed
diversion would be in the interests of both the landowner and the public.

Ward Councillors have been consulted about the proposal, no comments were
received.

Kettleshulme Parish Council has been consulted and no comments received.

The statutory undertakers have also been consulted and have raised no
objections to the proposed diversion. If a diversion order is made, existing rights
of access for the statutory undertakers to their apparatus and equipment are
protected.

The user groups have been consulted and no objections have been received.
East Cheshire Ramblers have commented that the proposed diversion is
satisfactory as it is the route currently used and welcome the replacement of
stiles with kissing gates.

Natural England has been consulted and has no comment to make to the
proposals.

An assessment in relation to Disability Discrimination Legislation has been
carried out by the PROW Maintenance and Enforcement Officer for the area
and it is considered that the proposed diversion is an improvement on the old
route.



Page 45

11.0 Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting
the report writer:

Name: Clare Hibbert

Designation: Definitive Map Officer

Tel No: 01606 271823

Email: clare.hibbert@cheshireeast.gov.uk
PROW File: 170D/417




396300

o
o
P
Page 46 3
. . . .
L
£
Pond
L
L
]
]
.
A J
*
)
)
LS
J
83
*
*
)
L)
A 3
4
4
4
4
- ' g
4
I 4
....
~~.....
The Yilla '----...........--.......-'-/V."l‘i'?ff23
'°o,7 s
q ’~~’
®
196.0m PG 189.9m P g
365200 365200
KG
Many steps !>
KG [
L
= »
“%/ ’
s ®
“ L 4
Y\
Y e
2
365100 X 365100
Cattle Grid " >
'l
4
4
4
4
&/
/\(zr ': Mill Pond
"
4
4
4
4
4
&
Gl KEY
'0
rf)b/ Route to be stopped-up
i QQ * >
4 s
Fo Unaffected Public
RO AV B N | 4 A N ¢ 2 Rights of Way
/
4
4
R < ——== P d t
/0 Q& roposed new route
» s &
0 o Q
” Q [ ]
'0
w w
[{e} [{e}
[0} [}
w P
o o
o o
I Highways Act 1980 Plan No.
1__1 250 Proposed diversion of Wincle FP39 HA/044

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

This is a working copy of the definitive map
and should not be used for legal purposes

Cheshire E@

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Cheshire East Council. 100049045 2010.

Council?




Page 47 Agenda ltem 10
CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Public Rights of Way Committee

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2011
Report of: Greenspaces Manager
Subject/Title: Highways Act 1980 s.119

Application for the Diversion of Public Footpath No 39
(part), Parish of Wincle.

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The report outlines the investigation to divert part of Public Footpath No 39 in
the Parish of Wincle. This includes a discussion of consultations carried out in
respect of the proposal and the legal tests to be considered for a diversion
order to be made. The proposal has been put forward by the Public Rights of
Way Unit as an application has been made by the landowner concerned. The
report makes a recommendation based on that information, for quasi-judicial
decision by Members as to whether or not an Order should be made to divert
the section of footpath concerned.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 An Order be made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as amended
by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to divert part of Public Footpath No
39 Wincle by creating a new section of public footpath and extinguishing the
current path as illustrated on Plan No. HA/044 on the grounds that it is
expedient in the interests of the owner of the land crossed by the path.

2.2  Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event of there
being no objections within the period specified, the Order be confirmed in the
exercise of the powers conferred on the Council by the said Acts.

2.3 In the event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire East Borough
Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing or public inquiry.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 In accordance with Section 119(1) of the Highways Act 1980 it is within the
Council’s discretion to make the Order if it appears to the Council to be
expedient to do so in the interests of the public or of the owner, lessee or
occupier of the land crossed by the path. It is considered that the proposed
diversion is in the interests of the landowner for the reasons set out in
paragraph 10.5 to 10.9 below.

3.2  Where objections to the making of an Order are made and not withdrawn, the
Order will fall to be confirmed by the Secretary of State. In considering



3.3

3.4

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

Page 48

whether to confirm an Order the Secretary will, in addition to the matters
discussed at paragraph 3.1 above, have regard to:

e Whether the path is substantially less convenient to the public as a
consequence of the diversion.

And whether it is expedient to confirm the Order considering:

e The effect that the diversion would have on the enjoyment of the path or
way as a whole.

e The effect that the coming into operation of the Order would have as
respects other land served by the existing public right of way.

e The effect that any new public right of way created by the Order would
have as respects the land over which the rights are so created and any
land held with it.

Where there are no outstanding objections, it is for the Council to determine

whether to confirm the Order in accordance with the matters referred to in

paragraph 3.2 above.

The proposed route will not be ‘substantially less convenient’ than the existing

route and diverting the footpath will be of considerable benefit to the

landowner in terms of enhancing the security and privacy of the property. Itis
considered that the proposed route will be a satisfactory alternative to the

current one and that the legal tests for the making and confirming of a

diversion order are satisfied.

Wards Affected

Macclesfield Forest

Local Ward Members

Councillor M Asquith, Councillor H Gaddum, Councillor L Smetham

Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health

Not applicable

Financial Implications

Not applicable

Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

Once an Order is made it may be the subject of objections. If objections are

not withdrawn, this removes the power of the local highway authority to
confirm the order itself, and may lead to a hearing/an inquiry. It follows that



9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Page 49

the Committee decision may be confirmed or not confirmed. This process
may involve additional legal support and resources

Risk Management
Not applicable
Background and Options

An application has been received from Mr E Stubbs, Tolls Farm, Danebridge,
Nr Macclesfield, Cheshire, SK11 0QE, requesting that the Council make an
Order under section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 to divert part of Public
Footpath No 39 in the Parish of Wincle.

Public Footpath No. 39, Wincle, commences at its junction with Barlow Hill at
OS grid reference SJ 9645 6521 and runs in a south westerly direction along
the semi-surfaced track to point A where it turns right to arc in a westerly
direction passing through the yard and between buildings of Tolls Farm (the
applicant’s property) and Pear Tree Cottage to then run along a concrete path
separating the houses beyond (Chapman’s Row Cottages) from their gardens
and terminating at OS grid reference 9629 6518 where it joins with Public
Footpath No.38, Wincle (point B).

The section of path to be diverted is shown by a solid black line on Plan No.
HA/044. The proposed diversion is illustrated on the same plan with a black
dashed line between points A-C.

The current path runs across land owned by Mr Stubbs (applicant) and
neighbouring landowners, Mr & Mrs Blythe of Pear Tree Cottage and Mr A
Hine, Mr D Riley, Mr F Cocker and Mr & Mrs N Heald who own cottages 1, 2,
3 and 4 respectively along Chapmans Row. All adjacent landowners have
registered their agreement to the proposed diversion. The proposed diversion
runs across land owned solely by Mr Stubbs. Under section 119 of the
Highways Act 1980 the Council may accede to an applicant’s request, if it
considers it expedient in the interests of the landowner to make an order to
divert the footpath.

The section of Public Footpath No 39, Wincle to be diverted runs through the
property of the landowner (Tolls Farm), through the property of adjacent Pear
Tree Cottage and between the houses and gardens of the properties along
Chapmans Row, giving rise to concerns relating to security, safety and
privacy.

The proposed new route (A-C) would follow a south westerly direction along a
semi-surfaced track through a pasture field from point A on Plan HA/044 to
point C, bypassing a cattle grid at point A by entering the field via a field gate to
the south and then re-joining the track.

The new route would have a recorded width of 2m and would not be enclosed
on either side.



10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

11.0

Page 50

Of benefit to the public, the new route would be significantly more enjoyable as
it would pass through a more open and scenic landscape bringing users closer
to the River Dane and taking away the need to pass between houses and
corresponding gardens.

It would be shorter in length by 78m and easier to navigate having only one
surface type (semi-surfaced track), being relatively flat and unobstructed
except for a field gate. The current route presents several surface types
(concrete, dirt and grass), gradients, 11 steps, a field gate and two pedestrian
gates. Furthermore, to reach point C, users of the current route must follow
Wincle FP38 which descends via more steps and passes through two kissing
gates.

Ward Councillors have been consulted about the proposal. No comments
have been received.

Wincle Parish Council has been consulted and registered unanimous support.

The statutory undertakers have also been consulted and have raised no
objections to the proposed diversion. If a diversion order is made, existing
rights of access for the statutory undertakers to their apparatus and equipment
are protected.

The user groups have been consulted. The Ramblers Association and the
Peak and Northern Footpath Society registered no objections. No further
comments were received.

The Council’'s Nature Conservation Officer has been consulted and has raised
no objection to the proposals.

An assessment in relation to Disability Discrimination Legislation has been
carried out by the PROW Maintenance and Enforcement Officer for the area
and it is considered that the proposed diversion is an improvement on the old
route.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting
the report writer:

Name: Marianne Nixon

Designation: Public Path Orders Officer

Tel No: 01606 271843

Email: marianne.nixon@cheshireeast.gov.uk
PROW File: 320D/422




Page 51

This page is intentionally left blank



388400

Page 52

o o o
o o o
Yol © N~
o0} [ee} [e0}
o0} o0} [0}
[s2} [s2} [s2}
. . T . . .
r I‘ ‘ S
) )
[} “ .Track
. ®
) )
L Y
\ )
Nz .
379000 +3 379000
ke
1‘%
0]
‘I - Tfac/r
[1p4
[§) Oy
X "O L T
4 “‘% . s
I’“ 'f
"g) o*
A 3 e 'O
1 =X .
) =2 'O
% c o
Golf Course * 3 N
L
378900 ! 378900
H
]
. ]
Stile to be
replaced
. Pond with "KG" s
L' 4
L' 4
L' 4
L 4
-, Bide| Cottage
Pond
378800 ” 378800
Track
Mottram g Ang, I "PG"
S e oy, -
s .
4 Stile
IIFGII ll
1 }
i
378700 N 378700
H
1 ]
1
H
i
1=
4 '.“a’ s
[T
Y
33
S KEY
L
i Route to be stopped-up
378600 3 [ {=378600
H Unaffected Public
S R Rights of Way
]
Y ——=— Proposed new route
4 ‘ :
&
"
]
1
[
w w w w
[0} [0} [0} [0}
[ee) oo [0} oo
5 a o) N
o o o o
o o o o
I Highways Act 1990
—
1:2,500

Mottram St Andrew FPs 7, 8 and 26

Plan No.
HA/041

This is a working copy of the definitive map
and should not be used for legal purposes

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.

Cheshire East Council. 100049045 2010.

Cheshire E@

This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright.

Council?




Page 53 Agenda ltem 11

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
Public Rights of Way Committee

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2011
Report of: Greenspaces Manager
Subject/Title: Highways Act 1980 s.119

Application for the Diversion of parts of Public Footpath
No’s 7, 8 and 26, Parish of Mottram St Andrew

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The report outlines the investigation to divert parts of Public Footpath No’s 7, 8
and 26 in the Parish of Mottram St Andrew. This includes a discussion of
consultations carried out in respect of the proposal and the legal tests to be
considered for a diversion order to be made. The proposal has been put
forward by the Public Rights of Way Unit as an application has been made by
the landowner concerned. The report makes a recommendation based on
that information, for quasi-judicial decision by Members as to whether or not
an Order should be made to divert the section of footpath concerned.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 An Order be made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as amended
by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to divert parts of Public Footpath
No’s 7, 8 and 26 Mottram St Andrew by creating a new section of public
footpath and extinguishing the current paths as illustrated on Plan No. HA/041
on the grounds that it is expedient in the interests of the owner of the land
crossed by the path.

2.2 Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event of there
being no objections within the period specified, the Order be confirmed in the
exercise of the powers conferred on the Council by the said Acts.

2.3 Inthe event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire East Borough
Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing or public inquiry.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 In accordance with Section 119(1) of the Highways Act 1980 it is within the
Council’s discretion to make the Order if it appears to the Council to be
expedient to do so in the interests of the public or of the owner, lessee or
occupier of the land crossed by the path. It is considered that the proposed
diversion is in the interests of the landowner for the reasons set out in
paragraphs 10.7 to 10.10 below.



3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

41

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

Page 54

Where objections to the making of an Order are made and not withdrawn, the
Order will fall to be confirmed by the Secretary of State. In considering
whether to confirm an Order the Secretary will, in addition to the matters
discussed at paragraph 3.1 above, have regard to:

e Whether the path is substantially less convenient to the public as a
consequence of the diversion.

And whether it is expedient to confirm the Order considering:

e The effect that the diversion would have on the enjoyment of the path or
way as a whole.

e The effect that the coming into operation of the Order would have as
respects other land served by the existing public right of way.

e The effect that any new public right of way created by the Order would
have as respects the land over which the rights are so created and any
land held with it.

Where there are no outstanding objections, it is for the Council to determine

whether to confirm the Order in accordance with the matters referred to in

paragraph 3.2 above.

The proposed route will not be ‘substantially less convenient’ than the existing

route and diverting the footpath will be of considerable benefit to the

landowner in terms of enhancing the security and privacy of the property. Itis
considered that the proposed route will be a satisfactory alternative to the

current one and that the legal tests for the making and confirming of a

diversion order are satisfied.

Wards Affected

Prestbury and Tytherington

Local Ward Members

Councillor P Findlow, Councillor T Jackson and Councillor B Livesley

Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health

Not applicable
Financial Implications

Not applicable



8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

Page 55

Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

Once an Order is made it may be the subject of objections. If objections are
not withdrawn, this removes the power of the local highway authority to
confirm the order itself, and may lead to a hearing/an inquiry. It follows that
the Committee decision may be confirmed or not confirmed. This process
may involve additional legal support and resources

Risk Management
Not applicable
Background and Options

An application has been received from Mr and Mrs Holland, Woodside
Cottage, Smithy Lane, Mottram St Andrew, Macclesfield, Cheshire, SK10 4QJ,
requesting that the Council make an Order under section 119 of the Highways
Act 1980 to divert parts of Public Footpath No’s 7, 8 and 26 in the Parish of
Mottram St Andrew.

Public Footpath No. 7, Mottram St Andrew, commences at its junction with
Public Footpath No. 26, Mottram St Andrew at OS grid reference SJ 8862
7879and runs in a generally north westerly direction over Mottram Golf course
to terminate at its junction with Public Footpath No. 9, Mottram St Andrew at
OS grid reference 8905 7915.

Public Footpath No. 8, Mottram St Andrew, commences at its junction with
Public Footpath No. 26, Mottram St Andrew at OS grid reference SJ 8822
7766 and runs in a generally northerly direction over Mottram Golf course to
terminate at its junction with Public Footpath No. 9, Mottram St Andrew in the
grounds of Mottram Hall at OS grid reference 8853 7950.

Public Footpath No. 26, Mottram St Andrew, commences at its junction with
Wilmslow Road at OS grid reference SJ 8802 7853 and runs in a generally
north easterly and then easterly direction along the metalled drive of Smithy
Lane to Woodside Farm (point A). Here, it continues in the easterly direction
through the flagged yard of Woodside Farm and over grassed land between
Woodside Cottage and out-buildings to terminate within an enclosed path
section at OS grid reference SJ 8862 7879.

The section of path to be diverted is shown by a solid black line on Plan No.
HA/041. The proposed diversion is illustrated on the same plan with a black
dashed line between points A-B.

The current path and the proposed diversion run across land owned by Mr and
Mrs Holland (applicants) and neighbouring landowners, Mr Carden of
Woodside Farm, Smithy Lane, Mottram St Andrew, Macclesfield, Cheshire,
SK10 4QJ and De Vere Hotels Ltd, owner of Mottram Hall, Wilmslow Road,
Mottram St Andrew, Cheshire, SK10 4QT. Both adjacent landowners have
registered their agreement to the proposed diversion. Under section 119 of



10.7

10.8

10.9

Page 56

the Highways Act 1980 the Council may accede to an applicant’s request, if it
considers it expedient in the interests of the landowner to make an order to
divert the footpath.

The section of Public Footpath No’s. 7, 8 and 26, Mottram St Andrew to be
diverted runs through the property of the landowner giving rise to concerns
relating to security and safety. The landowner also has planning permission to
convert some of the outbuildings into living accommodation, adding to the
need for increased privacy and security at the property.

The proposed new route (A-B) would follow a generally north easterly direction
from the metalled road (point A on Plan HA/04), through a kissing gate and
along a semi-surfaced track that dissects a pasture field. Once the track starts
to bear easterly, the route would leave it to continue north easterly over the
pasture field to a kissing gate in the northern fence boundary where it would
cross Mottram St Andrew Footpath No. 8. It would then turn easterly along the
boundary and beyond to bear north easterly following a mown grass path over
Mottram Golf Course, terminating at point B where it would join Mottram St
Andrew FP7.

The new route would have a recorded width of 2m and would not be enclosed
on either side.

10.10 Of benefit to the public, the new route would be significantly more enjoyable

10.11

as it would pass through more open and scenic landscape and would have
fewer barriers (two kissing gates as opposed to three stiles, a pedestrian gate
and a field gate). Furthermore, it would be less intimidating for users who are
currently forced to pass between the buildings of Woodside Cottage and the
busy livery yard that is Woodside Farm.

Ward Councillors have been consulted about the proposal. No comments
have been received.

10.12 Mottram St Andrew Parish Council has been consulted and did not raise any

objections.

10.13 The statutory undertakers have also been consulted and have raised no

objections to the proposed diversion. If a diversion order is made, existing
rights of access for the statutory undertakers to their apparatus and equipment
are protected.

10.14 The user groups have been consulted. The Ramblers Association and the

Peak and Northern Footpath Society registered no objections,

10.15 The Alderley Edge Wilmslow and District Footpath Preservation Society

informed the Council that a claim had been submitted in April 2008 to upgrade
Mottram St Andrew Footpath No. 26 to a restricted byway (Definitive Map
Modification Order No MA/5/240). The applicants, Mr and Mrs Holland, are
aware of the implications of this claim in relation to the proposed diversion of
part of this path and have instructed the Council to continue.



Page 57

10.16 No other comments were received.

10.17 The Council’s Nature Conservation Officer has been consulted and has raised
no objection to the proposals.

10.18 An assessment in relation to Disability Discrimination Legislation has been
carried out by the PROW Maintenance and Enforcement Officer for the area
and it is considered that the proposed diversion is an improvement on the old
route.

11.0 Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting
the report writer:

Name: Marianne Nixon

Designation: Public Path Orders Officer

Tel No: 01606 271843

Email: marianne.nixon@cheshireeast.gov.uk
PROW File: 216D/425




Page 58

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 59

o o o o o o o
o o <) o o =) =]
o ~ N ™ <t 0 ©
o) o) [eo) © ) © ©
<) © © © © © ©
[5e] [5e] [5e] [5e] ™ [5e] [5e]
The Dave House V\/
ell
379100 Mottram OId Hall " 379100
FB %
Pond '
2
- % S
® &rack
Rond bord ®
®
379000 7 379000
ond
o
Q0
5
Golf Course %
378900 = 378900
b Pond g
Pond
The Coppicg YWogqdside Cottage
Pond
378800 378800
103.3m 407.3
L) \
Pond &, Rond
B,
Q?\ Woodside Farm
<
378700 7 378700
Keepers Cloge /
Sunridge
Cottag
oD Pond .
115.5, Byeways Heeley Hil
378600 378600
Pongd Laneside
1 Mottram Cross e i
=
J lc
M4 6t a4
378500 % Pond 378500
Buls Head [ni
J Cedar Lodgg N
Andrew's
122,20
Pond
378400 378400
. Bt Breladespond
Little Acorns
Ashworth Deng Pong
o 126.2:1 Ronds R
[o3) w w w w w w
® ® ® ® @® @® ®
® [e) ® ® ® ® @®
=] = N @ N [ [
[=} o o [=] o o [=]
o o o o o o o
+ Plan of DMMO application to upgrade \
Mottram St Andrew FP26 to a Restricted Bywa : /\
[ ] . . y y This is a working copy of the definitive map CheSh’re Ea@\_,
(ref- MA/5/240) = que Ime- and should not be used for legal purposes Council Y
1:3,750
This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Cheshire East Council. 100049045 2011.




o o
o o
2 Page 60 8
o)) o))
™ ™
337.7m
Burntcliff Top
o ® 3
Y
Y
L)
Y
-
.
-
.
‘4}.
~
h..~
~
§.~
~
h..
S
§~.
S
~§
Q~.
366300 e 366300
“
~
LA
1 Sheepfold
Goosetree 1
1
[ |
B 1
o I 3
[ |
[ |
1
|}
| )
| |
| |
| )
\ 1
366200 1 366200
~
A
c 4
A}
.
D S LN oy .
'.~~
Q~~
»
Y
-
.
+
r (N S
KEY ¢
Route to be stopped-up
Unaffected Public
Rights of Way
—=—==— Proposed new route
366100 366100
w ) w )
© ©
© ©
= N
o o
o o
+ Highways Act 1980 Plan No. G
. . . This is a working copy of the definitive map JULi
— Proposed diversion of Wild boarC|OUgh FP14 HA/039 and should not be used for legal purposes CheSh’rgoﬁgcs”t//
1:1,250
This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Cheshire East Council. 100049045 2011.




Page 61 Agenda ltem 12

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
Public Rights of Way Committee

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2011
Report of: Greenspaces Manager
Subject/Title: Highways Act 1980 s.119

Application for the Diversion of Public Footpath no. 14
(part), Parish of Wildboarclough

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The report outlines the investigation to divert part of Public Footpath No.14 in
the Parish of Wildboarclough. This includes a discussion of consultations
carried out in respect of the proposal and the legal tests to be considered for a
diversion order to be made. The proposal has been put forward by the Public
Rights of Way Unit as an application has been made by the landowner
concerned. The report makes a recommendation based on that information,
for quasi-judicial decision by Members as to whether or not an Order should
be made to divert the section of footpath concerned.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 An Order be made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as amended
by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to divert part of Public Footpath
No.14 Wildboarclough by creating a new section of public footpath and
extinguishing the current path as illustrated on Plan No. HA/039 on the
grounds that it is expedient in the interests of the owner of the land crossed by
the path.

2.2  Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event of there
being no objections within the period specified, the Order be confirmed in the
exercise of the powers conferred on the Council by the said Acts.

2.3 Inthe event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire East Borough
Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing or public inquiry.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 In accordance with Section 119(1) of the Highways Act 1980 it is within the
Council’s discretion to make the Order if it appears to the Council to be
expedient to do so in the interests of the public or of the owner, lessee or
occupier of the land crossed by the path. It is considered that the proposed
diversion is in the interests of the landowner for the reasons set out in
paragraph 10.4 and 10.5 below.



3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

4.0

4.1

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

Page 62

Where objections to the making of an Order are made and not withdrawn, the
Order will fall to be confirmed by the Secretary of State. In considering
whether to confirm an Order the Secretary will, in addition to the matters
discussed at paragraph 3.1 above, have regard to:

e Whether the path is substantially less convenient to the public as a
consequence of the diversion.

And whether it is expedient to confirm the Order considering:

e The effect that the diversion would have on the enjoyment of the path or
way as a whole.

e The effect that the coming into operation of the Order would have as
respects other land served by the existing public right of way.

e The effect that any new public right of way created by the Order would
have as respects the land over which the rights are so created and any
land held with it.

Where there are no outstanding objections, it is for the Council to determine
whether to confirm the Order in accordance with the matters referred to in
paragraph 3.2 above.

Although concerns were expressed about the proposed route during the initial
consultation process, these were resolved following a site visit where
agreement of the reasons for the selected route was reached and a slight
amendment to the proposed new route made at the request of the landowner.
The amended route did not trigger any objections during a second informal
consultation exercise.

The proposed route will not be ‘substantially less convenient’ than the existing
route and diverting the footpath will be of considerable benefit to the
landowner in terms of enhancing the security and privacy of the property. Itis
considered that the proposed route will be a satisfactory alternative to the
current one and that the legal tests for the making and confirming of a
diversion order are satisfied.

Wards Affected

Macclesfield Forest

Local Ward Members

Councillor M Asquith, Councillor H Gaddum, Councillor L Smetham

Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health

Not applicable



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Page 63

Financial Implications
Not applicable
Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

Once an Order is made it may be the subject of objections. If objections are
not withdrawn, this removes the power of the local highway authority to
confirm the order itself, and may lead to a hearing/an inquiry. It follows that
the Committee decision may be confirmed or not confirmed. This process
may involve additional legal support and resources

Risk Management
Not applicable
Background and Options

An application has been received from Mr and Mrs J Pollard, Goosetree Farm,
Wildboarclough, Macclesfield, Cheshire, SK11 0BH, requesting that the
Council make an Order under section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 to divert
part of Public Footpath no. 14 in the Parish of Wildboarclough.

Public Footpath No. 14, Wildboarclough commences at OS grid reference SJ
9908 6634 and follows a metalled track in a south easterly direction to
turning south westerly (point A) and becoming stone and grass track as it
passes between the farm buildings of Goosetree Farm, turning south at point
B. From here, the route continues in a southerly direction down a steep grass
track and then bears east south easterly (point C) to pass through a

field gate into a pasture field. It continues into a second pasture field

and then bears south easterly and then southerly and then easterly for the

to terminate at OS grid reference SJ 9934 6609. The section of path to be
diverted is shown by a solid black line on Plan No. HA/039. The proposed
diversion is illustrated on the same plan with a black dashed line between
points A-D.

Mr and Mrs J Pollard own the land over which the current path and the
proposed diversion run. Under section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 the
Council may accede to an applicant’s request, if it considers it expedient in the
interests of the landowner to make an order to divert the footpath.

The section of Public Footpath No. 14, Wildboarclough to be diverted runs
through the property of the landowner giving rise to concerns relating to
security and safety. The proposed diversion route would take path users
away from Goosetree Farm along a more direct route that is already available
as a permissive path.

Starting at point A on plan HA/039, the proposed new route would enter a field
via a kissing gate and continue across the field in a south south easterly
direction close to the western field boundary to terminate at point D. The new



10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

11.0

Page 64

route would have a recorded width of 2m and would not be enclosed on either
side. The route is already used by walkers as a permissive path and affords
pleasant, open views of the countryside. The applicant would carry out
surfacing improvements on the route by installing steps where necessary,
building up the surface with stone where it is soft, and by removing some of
the large stones in the surface of the route.

Ward Councillors have been consulted about the proposal and Councillor
Smetham responded to register that she has no objection. Councillor
Gaddum queried the need to contact the National Trust. No further comments
were received.

Macclesfield Forest & Wildboarclough Parish Council has been consulted and
did not raise any objections.

The statutory undertakers have also been consulted and have raised no
objections to the proposed diversion. If a diversion order is made, existing
rights of access for the statutory undertakers to their apparatus and equipment
are protected.

The user groups have been consulted. The Ramblers Association and the
Peak and Northern Footpath Society registered that they have no objection.
No further comments were received.

The Council’'s Nature Conservation Officer has been consulted and has raised
no objection to the proposals.

An assessment in relation to Disability Discrimination Legislation has been
carried out by the PROW Maintenance and Enforcement Officer for the area
and it is considered that the proposed diversion is an improvement on the old
route.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting
the report writer:

Name: Marianne Nixon

Designation: Public Path Orders Officer

Tel No: 01606 271843

Email: marianne.nixon@cheshireeast.gov.uk
PROW File: 315D/423




Page 65

This page is intentionally left blank



o o o
o =) =)
< 0 ©
N~ N N~
o] o] ©
™ ™ <i'>

¥
[
[
N KEY
k Route to be stopped-up
H
H Unaffected Public
4 H Rights of Way s
'
| —=—=— Proposed new route
v
[l
|
)
Gap H
| ]
[l
]
L ]
[l
1
-‘ A
- o = o=
383300 = 383300
/ .
Pond
383200 383200
*” r*
w w w
@ [e) @
~ ~ ~
S n o))
o o [=]
o o o
I Highways Act 1980 Plan No. G
| ] g y . . . This is a working copy of the definitive map CheShlre EagF/\J
- Proposed diversion of Wilmslow FP128 HA/042 and should not be used for legal puTposes Council?
This map is based upon Ordnance Survey material with the permission of Ordnance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Cheshire East Council. 100049045 2010.




Page 67 Agenda ltem 13

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
Public Rights of Way Committee

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2011
Report of: Greenspaces Manager
Subject/Title: Highways Act 1980 s.119

Application for the Diversion of Public Footpath No 128
(part), Parish of Wilmslow

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 The report outlines the investigation to divert parts of Public Footpath No 128
in the Parish of Wilmslow. This includes a discussion of consultations carried
out in respect of the proposal and the legal tests to be considered for a
diversion order to be made. The proposal has been put forward by the Public
Rights of Way Unit as an application has been made by the landowner
concerned. The report makes a recommendation based on that information,
for quasi-judicial decision by Members as to whether or not an Order should
be made to divert the section of footpath concerned.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 An Order be made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as amended
by the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, to divert part of Public Footpath No
128 Wilmslow by creating a new section of public footpath and extinguishing
the current path as illustrated on Plan No. HA/042 on the grounds that it is
expedient in the interests of the owner of the land crossed by the path.

2.2  Public Notice of the making of the Order be given and in the event of there
being no objections within the period specified, the Order be confirmed in the
exercise of the powers conferred on the Council by the said Acts.

2.3 In the event of objections to the Order being received, Cheshire East Borough
Council be responsible for the conduct of any hearing or public inquiry.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 In accordance with Section 119(1) of the Highways Act 1980 it is within the
Council’s discretion to make the Order if it appears to the Council to be
expedient to do so in the interests of the public or of the owner, lessee or
occupier of the land crossed by the path. It is considered that the proposed
diversion is in the interests of the landowner for the reasons set out in
paragraphs 10.5 to 10.7 below.



3.2

3.3

3.4

4.0

41

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

7.0

7.1

Page 68

Where objections to the making of an Order are made and not withdrawn, the
Order will fall to be confirmed by the Secretary of State. In considering
whether to confirm an Order the Secretary will, in addition to the matters
discussed at paragraph 3.1 above, have regard to:

e Whether the path is substantially less convenient to the public as a
consequence of the diversion.

And whether it is expedient to confirm the Order considering:

e The effect that the diversion would have on the enjoyment of the path or
way as a whole.

e The effect that the coming into operation of the Order would have as
respects other land served by the existing public right of way.

e The effect that any new public right of way created by the Order would
have as respects the land over which the rights are so created and any
land held with it.

Where there are no outstanding objections, it is for the Council to determine

whether to confirm the Order in accordance with the matters referred to in

paragraph 3.2 above.

The proposed route will not be ‘substantially less convenient’ than the existing

route and diverting the footpath will be of considerable benefit to the

landowner in terms of enhancing the security and privacy of the property. Itis
considered that the proposed route will be a satisfactory alternative to the

current one and that the legal tests for the making and confirming of a

diversion order are satisfied.

Wards Affected

Wilmslow North

Local Ward Members

Councillor J Crockatt, Councillor D Stockton and Councillor P Whiteley

Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health

Not applicable
Financial Implications

Not applicable



8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Page 69

Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

Once an Order is made it may be the subject of objections. If objections are
not withdrawn, this removes the power of the local highway authority to
confirm the order itself, and may lead to a hearing/an inquiry. It follows that
the Committee decision may be confirmed or not confirmed. This process
may involve additional legal support and resources

Risk Management
Not applicable
Background and Options

An application has been received from Mr R Hurst, Dairy House Farm, Dairy
House Lane, Woodford, Cheshire, SK7 1RA, requesting that the Council make
an Order under section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 to divert part of Public
Footpath No 128 in the Parish of Wilmslow.

Public Footpath No. 128 Wilmslow covers a total distance of 1149m. It
commences on a metalled drive at OS grid reference SJ 8774 8398 and runs
in a southerly direction before crossing the A555 to follow the length of the
metalled road opposite (Dairy House Lane) in a south south westerly direction
to reach Dairy House Farm (point B on Plan No. HA/042). Here, it bears west
south westerly and then southerly across pasture fields to terminate at OS grid
reference SJ 8730 8297, its junction with Bridleway No. 92 Wilmslow that runs
along Blossoms Lane.

The section of path to be diverted is shown by a solid black line on Plan No.
HA/042. The proposed diversion is illustrated on the same plan with a black
dashed line between points A-C.

The current path runs across land owned by Mr Stubbs. Under section 119 of
the Highways Act 1980 the Council may accede to an applicant’s request, if it
considers it expedient in the interests of the landowner to make an order to
divert the footpath.

The section of Public Footpath No 128, Wilmslow to be diverted runs to and
through the busy working yard of Dairy House Farm, giving rise to concerns
relating to security, safety and privacy.

10.6 The proposed new route would leave the metalled track at point A on Plan

10.7

HA/042 to enter the adjacent western field via a gap. It would then continue
westerly along the northern field boundary and then southerly along the western
field boundary to terminate at the south west field corner at point C. The new
route would have a width of 2m, a length of 162m and would not be enclosed on
either side.

Of benefit to the public, the new route would take path users away from the
busy working yard and would be unobstructed.



10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

11.0

Page 70

Ward Councillors have been consulted about the proposal. No comments
have been received.

The statutory undertakers have also been consulted and have raised no
objections to the proposed diversion. If a diversion order is made, existing
rights of access for the statutory undertakers to their apparatus and equipment
are protected.

The user groups have been consulted. The Ramblers Association have
suggested that the surface of the proposed route across the field should be
treated with stone. The council’s position is that as the current route to be
diverted crosses pasture, and then continues into pasture until its termination,
it would not be reasonable or necessary to expect the applicant to provide a
stone surface for the new route. The resolution of this issue will be verbally
reported at the committee meeting on 17" March.

No further comments were received.

The Council’s Nature Conservation Officer has been consulted and has raised
no objection to the proposals.

An assessment in relation to Disability Discrimination Legislation has been
carried out by the PROW Maintenance and Enforcement Officer for the area
and it is considered that the proposed diversion is an improvement on the old
route.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting
the report writer:

Name: Marianne Nixon

Designation: Public Path Orders Officer

Tel No: 01606 271843

Email: marianne.nixon@cheshireeast.gov.uk
PROW File: 645D/426




Page 71 Agenda ltem 14

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
Public Rights of Way Committee

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2011
Report of: Green Spaces Manager
Subject/Title: Cheshire East Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2011-

2026: Notification of Implementation Plan 2011-2015

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 This report presents the first 4 year implementation plan under the Cheshire
East Rights of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) 2011-2026.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 That the Implementation Plan 2011-2015, of the Cheshire East Rights of Way
Improvement Plan 2011-2026, shown in Appendix 1, be noted.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendation

3.1 The Implementation Plan 2011-2015 was put before the Portfolio Holder for
Health and Wellbeing on 14 March 2011 for approval. The report presents the
Implementation Plan for information purposes.

4.0 Wards Affected

4.1  All Wards affected.

5.0 Local Ward Members
5.1 All Local Ward Members.

6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health
6.1  The development of the ROWIP is aligned with the health and wellbeing
objectives and priorities of the Council as stated in the Corporate Plan (2.1.1
Encouraging healthier lifestyles), the Local Area Agreement (National Indicator
8 Adult participation in sport and active recreation) and the Health and
Wellbeing Service commitment to the Change4Life initiative.

6.2 In addition, the ROWIP, as an integrated part of the Local Transport Plan, is
set within the context of the Local Area Agreement indicators concerning air
quality and CO; emissions.



7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

8.2

9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

Page 72

Financial Implications

The ROWIP strategy document contains the policies and initiatives of the
relevant sections of the Local Transport Plan (LTP3). The strategy sets out
what the Council will aim to do during the period 2011-2026, although no
financial commitment is made. Funding sources, which will include external
grants, will be identified through the implementation plans for the ROWIP and
LTP3.

Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

It is a statutory duty under section 60 of the Countryside and Rights of Way Act
2000 for every local highway authority to prepare and publish a Rights of Way
Improvement Plan.

Non compliance with the requirement for the full integration of the ROWIP with
the LTP3 could result in criticism from statutory monitoring bodies and
agencies.

Risk Management
No matters arising.
Background and Options

In December 2010, the Committee saw the final ROWIP document which sets
out the strategy by which the Council aims to improve the public rights of way
over the next 15 years. This document was approved by the Portfolio Holder on
17 January 2011.

The ROWIP must set out a statement of action detailing how the authority will
implement improvements: these will be set out in 4-yearly implementation
plans, the first of which is shown in Appendix 1.

Suggestions for improvement projects have been submitted, during the
development of the ROWIP, by officers, members of the public, user groups
and community groups. These suggestions have then been prioritised by the
methodology presented to the Committee in December 2010 which was
selected and amended by the Cheshire Local Access Forum. This
methodology takes into account the benefits of the scheme in the context of
local need.

The highest priority suggestions have been selected for each category of
suggestion: walking, cycling, horse riding, transport-related and cross-cutting
projects. It is intended that these suggestions be investigated and developed
first, with the acknowledgement that some may not be feasible and other
opportunities may arise through partnerships and developments that result in
alternative projects being taken forward.



Page 73

10.5 Monitoring and reporting shall be undertaken through annual progress
reporting.

11.0 Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting
the report writer:

Name: Genni Butler
Designation: Countryside Access Development Officer
Tel No: 01606 271817

Email: genni.butler@cheshireeast.gov.uk




Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Rights of Way
Improvement Plan
2011 - 2026

Implementation Plan 2011 - 2015

o
Cheshire East)
www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/prow Council



Page 76



Contents
1 ROWIP policies and initiatives ... doesssssssseseeeesoeee 2
2 Prioritising improvements 7
3 Statement of aCtion ... e B 9
4 Monitoring 16
List of tables
Table 1 Prioritised projects 2011-2015 - leisure walking 9
Table 2 Prioritised projects 2011-2015 - leisure cycling 10
Table 3 Prioritised projects 2011-2015 - horse riding 11
Table 4 Prioritised projects 2011-2015 - cross cutting projects ... 12
Table 5 Prioritised projects 2011-2015 - transport-related 13

Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015



Page 78

Introduction

In April 2011, Cheshire East Council published its Rights of Way Improvement
Plan (ROWIP) 2011-2026 which set out the strategy by which the Council
aims to improve public rights of way and countryside access across the
Borough.

Rights of Way
Improvement Plan
2011-2026

The ROWIP has 5 chapters:-

1. Introduction - an explanation of what the ROWIP is and how it was
produced;

2. Evaluation of Cheshire's ROWIP 2006-2011 - an assessment of
successes and ongoing challenges;

3. Network assessment - a description of what countryside access is
available to the public in Cheshire East;

4. Demand assessment - a description of what people want from public
rights of way and countryside access at the present time and future
demand trends; and,

5. What we need to do - listing policies and initiatives through which we
aim to make improvements. These are common to the Local Transport
Plan 3 (LTP3).

The policies and initiatives stated in chapter five state what we need to do
and are repeated below. For full background details please read the ROWIP
strategy available at www.cheshireeast.gov.uk/prow.

The actual projects to be delivered under the ROWIP strategy will be set out
in 4-yearly implementation plans, this being the first.

2 Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015



Page 79

Policy H2: Promotion of active travel and healthy activities

Work in partnership to promote walking, cycling and horse riding as active
travel options and healthy activities

Promote opportunities and facilities: highlight opportunities for active travel
and healthy activity by promoting new and existing facilities using appropriate
media such as signage, walking and cycling maps, leaflets, events, internet sites
and other technologies. This will focus on routes and sites that are accessible
by modes of active travel or public transport (such as important leisure routes
or key employment locations) and will involve working with health agencies, help
to promote active travel and other activities as a lifestyle choice for all ages
amongst our residents and visitors. Close working with the Peak District National
Park Authority and other visitor organisations to provide helpful information and
promote a consistent and warm welcome to visitor attractions.

Organised walks, rides and activities: undertake and support organised walks,
rides and other activities which encourage people to partake in healthy activities
that they may not otherwise have the confidence or knowledge to do.

Public information on the public rights of way network: enhance the accuracy
of the Definitive Map and Statement to provide an up to date and accessible
format. This will facilitate changes to the network, through the necessary legal
processes, for the benefit of landowners and the public.

Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015



Page 80

Policy H3: Public rights of way and green infrastructure

Protect and enhance our public rights of way and green infrastructure and
endeavour to create new links where beneficial for health, safety or access
to green spaces

Sustainable access to green spaces: aim to improve access for all members
of society, including disabled people, to and within green infrastructure, including
the public rights of way network, town parks, public open space, the Peak District
National Park and country parks.

Link key services: seek to improve the routes and green infrastructure that link
key services (e.g. schools, community centres and tourism destinations) by
routes and green infrastructure such as canal towpaths. Investments will include
improving surfacing and signage, where appropriate, and creating links where
gaps exist in the network.

Leisure routes for cyclists, horse riders and walkers: endeavour to create
and enhance leisure routes for cyclists, horse riders and walkers on the public
rights of way network and highway network.

Litter, environmental health, safety and security: encourage users to reduce
litter and will improve environmental health, safety and other security concerns
through education and clean-up campaigns.

Country parks, town parks and public open space: ensure adequate
maintenance and improvement of land within the Council's ownership that is
used for formal and informal public access and recreation, at a local level and
sites which are tourism destinations.

Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015



Page 81

Policy S7: Walking

Work with stakeholders to improve facilities for walking so that it is
attractive for shorter journeys

Footway and footpath improvements: promote improvements to the condition
of highway footways, footpaths and public rights of way. In particular, support
the development, on safety grounds, of low cost measures, such as verge
improvements. Consideration will also be given to resurfacing, removal of litter
and other environmental health issues, provision of lighting and seating, where
appropriate, and the removal of barriers and obstacles to open up more routes
for more people, particularly those with pushchairs and disabled people. This
initiative will also recognise the environmental and biodiversity benefits of creating
attractive green spaces alongside walkways and cycleways.

New walking routes: support the development of new routes where required
but not currently provided, such as on rural roads and in villages, and support
initiatives to connect up the highway footway and public rights of way networks
for greater pedestrian movement, including links to the canal system.

Pedestrian crossing points: support the provision of safe crossing points, wide
pavements, dropped kerbs and other pedestrian facilities where necessary to
encourage travel on foot and improve perceptions of safety along routes and
make routes more accessible to disabled people.

Route signing: promote the signing of dedicated on- and off-road pedestrian
routes to encourage greater use by pedestrians. Initiatives will include the
provision of signs relaying destination, distance and time information.

Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015



Page 82

Policy S8: Cycling

Work with stakeholders to improve facilities for cycling so that it is
attractive for shorter journeys

New cycle routes: seek to provide appropriate highways improvements (e.g.
on-road cycle lanes or wide nearside lanes) and off-road routes to make
commuter cycling a safe and quick alternative to car use. Focus will be on
creating a network of joined-up routes catering for a range of cycle skill levels
and will capitalise on the potential of the canal system for cyclists.

Junction and route improvements for cyclists: promote the provision of filter
lanes, advanced stop lines and toucan crossings, where applicable, to prioritise
and enhance the safety of cyclists at junctions. Undertake surfacing and lighting
improvements on existing key links. Such measures will be incorporated into
the design of new or amended highways, as well as retrospectively to existing
road junctions, where possible.

Cycle facilities: work to provide greater access to cycling facilities (e.g. cycle
parking, changing facilities, showers, hire & ride schemes) in town centres, at
community facilities (e.g. libraries) and service and employment centres.

Route signing: encourage a greater uptake of cycling through the provision of
route signs which state the destination, distance and journey time to selected
destinations, to complement other sources of information.

Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015



2 Prioritising improvements

Prioritisation

21

2.2

2.3

2.4

The projects listed here have been collated from suggestions gathered from
the public, user groups and other organisations and are recorded in both
geographical and database format for ease of interrogation and sharing with
other departments and organisations.

The suggestions have been assessed and scored through a prioritisation
methodology which was selected and amended by the Cheshire Local Access
Forum, the statutory body advising the Council on access to the countryside.
The scoring reflects the policies of the ROWIP and the benefits offered by
the suggestion in terms of need:

e improving access where current provision is poor;

e improving access in a community where there is a high level of
deprivation;

improving access for disabled people, horse riders and cyclists;
improving safety of non-motorised users on roads;

Improving access to services such as shops and schools

Improving access to areas of interest such as water bodies or woodland;
and,

e Improving access which will bring about a benefit to the visitor economy.

The prioritisation methodology also incorporates an assessment of the costs
of the scheme in terms of capital and resources, and of the feasibility of
delivering the suggestion. In the following tables, the amount of staff time
required to deliver the project is indicated by stars: * low, ** medium, ***
high. Similarly, the estimated cost of the project is indicated by pound signs:
£ low, ££ medium, £££ high.

Those suggestions scoring high in terms of delivering benefits and scoring
low in terms of costs have been ranked to be taken forward. The top 5
suggestions in each of the leisure walking, leisure cycling, horse riding and
cross-cutting categories have been selected. A large number of
transport-related suggestions are listed in the statement of action as these
tend to be large scale projects which run for a number of years and in which
public rights of way will contribute one part of the whole.

Statement of action

2.5

The following statement of action lists an indicative set of projects that the
Council aims to deliver within the 4 year period 2011-2015. What can actually
be achieved is dependent to varying degrees on the availability of funding
and on landowner agreement. The Council will need to retain flexibility in
order to take advantage of opportunities arising, for example, from future
development proposals or other partnerships. It follows that the Council may
deliver alternative projects to the schemes listed here.

Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015 7



2 Prioritising improvements

2.6 It is realised that funding from central government, local authority budgets
and other sources are likely to be minimal in at least the short term future.
Therefore, the importance of partnership working in improving the network
and the need to draw in external funds from other sources must not be
overlooked.

2.7 The delivery of projects will also be subject to the organisational changes
occurring within Cheshire East Council. A review of the Council's functions
and budgets across Green Spaces and the wider Health & Wellbeing service
is anticipated as a result of the Comprehensive Spending Review and other
pressures.

2.8 Alongside these ROWIP projects, ongoing maintenance works and smaller
scale improvements will continue to be undertaken through the maintenance
budget of the Public Rights of Way team. These works are aligned to the
policies of the ROWIP as well as satisfying the authority's duty to maintain
public rights of way. This duty is undertaken in accordance with the authority's
prioritisation system for different categories of maintenance and enforcement
issues on public rights of way.

8 Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015



Page 85

Aousby
suonNqLIuod JUBWUOJIAUT
Jadojana(g ‘1ouno) aueT
‘siouped ypm umo] uoje|buo) yeuueAeH pue }8a.)S yeuueAeH uoje|buo)
piq Buipuny jeua)x3 ‘dnoig Ajlunwwo)  usamiaq usamiaq yred ay) Buinoidwi ‘Aepn

196pNng dIMOY 33 . ‘sioumopue 10 ANjqises) ay) syebnsanu]  AsjleA sueq Gy

sAemiaiep) ysnug a|doad pa|qgesip Jo} AjJejnoied uome

‘sisumopue‘dnols) ‘yiedmoy |eue) Aaslia|\ pue yoinyo ‘Ly

SS90y pa|gesIq  Judll 8y} OJuUO peoy pIoSInUY PIO ‘ON Yiedjoo4
uo}g|buon  pue yjedjoo} wolj Ssaooe aAocsdw| apoy PPO  SEM

sJauped yum

pIq Buipuny [euss)x3
“186pnq dIMOY 3 «
diysiauped Sal}l|1o.) 8y} SS820e 0} SjuapIsal

JabBes|y ‘|louno) J1oJ 8)n0J 8ANoRI)E pUE Bjes e
umo] Jabes|y apiroid 011Ny D1V 8yl pue aul] jes lebes|y

sJauped ypum
piq Buipuny jeua)x3

1ebpnqg dIMOY 33 % ‘SIUMOpUET | By} usamiaq yied yul| 8y} anoidwi ed POOM LM
diysiaupued ealy sJasn Je|nbal-uou
[e207] YoImjueN 0] @)noJ doo ay) [eubis 0}
‘sloupied doo  JaAeap) JaAY BY) JoA0 abplq apoT]  dooT apISIaAly
}96png dIMOY 3 % SpISIonl] YoimjueN  Jsjepn ye abeubis [euonippe |jejsu UOIMJUEN  JOM
diysiauued speol Jabes|y
Jabes|y ‘[Iouno)  BulpioAe auiT }|eS 8y} Jo pus Jabes)y = ‘Yied Aljuno)
sAemybiH 33 x umo| Jabes|y oyl 0] ssadoe Buinoidwi ajebiiseaul auryes  LyM

Bupjjem ainsid| - G10Z-110Z syoafoid pasnuold | a|qel

Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015



Page 86

sAemybiH

186pnqg JIMOY

196pnq dIMOY

186png dIMOY

186pnqg JIMOY

33

33

33

*¥%

*¥%

*¥

diysiauped
Jobes|y ‘skemybiH

MO|SWIIANBIOAD
‘slaumopue]

MO|SWIIANBIOAD
‘louno)

UMO] uojuhod
‘slaumopue]

dnoig Ajlunwwo)
‘skemusiep) ysnug

JuswaAosduw|
yjeeH ‘Awouoo]
JOJISIA ‘Silaumopuer]
‘skemybiH

Jabes|y wouj apu
Jejnalio e ajeald 0} S)SI[OAD J0) Jajes
peoy Jabes|y buew ajebnsanu|

s1s119A2 0} 9|ge|ieAe sajnol

JO YJOM]}aU By} pudxa 0] SAema|plLiq
0} syjedjooy asayj buipesbdn

Jo Ajiqissod ay) ayebiseu|

Aep\ pooma|ppliiy
a9y} YUM aA0l9) |9zeH pue

uojuAod Yul| 0] SUBBW B SB auljoUu|
S80Ulld UO 8)Nn0J SIy} 8sn 0} S)sIjoAo
Buigeus jo Ajjiqissod ay) ayeblysanu|

yjedmoy |eued

playsaooe|\ By} Yim uoime|dng

ul Buisnoy s308uUu09 Yyoiym Aema|pLiq
uo sanss| abeulelp aAj0SaYy

Aem jo syybu ongnd

pue speoJ Jajainb Buisn ‘a@yi1q Aq
BAI8SaY ainjeN |BO0T Uuojalalg yoeal
0] uo)s|buo) pue |adey) saw|oH
woJ} aynos pajowoud e dn jog

BuioAa ainsia| - G10Z-110Z syoaload pasnuold Z a|qel

llesseH
‘peoy Jabes|y

AR R 1%
"'SON Yiedjoo4
Aajiaqqop

. "ON YiedjooH
uojuhod

ve
"ON Aema|pLg
uoja|buo)

aAIBSaY alnieN
|00 uojalaig
0} 8)noJ 8j9A9H

GO

(20)

€0

O

128

Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015

10



Page 87

186png dIMOY

sAemybiH

196pnq dIMOY

suonngLIuod
Jadojansa(q

suolnnguuod
JadojanaQ

186pnqg JIMOY

33

33

33

*¥%

*¥%

*%

*¥%

e

Siaply
allysayo YuoN
‘siIaumopue]

siopry
aJ1ysayD YUON
‘siaumopue]

sdnoub

Jasn Japll 8SIoH

‘silaumopue]

Jaumopue]
‘uoneroossy
sAema|pug
Japiog

Jaumopue]
‘uoljeloossy
sAema|pug
Japlog

‘Buipu peOJ-10 JO BaJR 9|gen|eA
B 9)eald 0} sniejs Aema|pliq 0} syyedjooy
Buipesbdn jo Ayjigissod ay) ajebisanu

"aueT sJ9)sIS uaAag Buisn siasn 1oy
9 "'ON Aema|plig uous||O 0} ssadoe apiroid
0] yied abpa pjal) 4o yied abiaA e apinoid

}Jomjau Buipunotins pue Aep\ pOOMB|PPIA
8y} 0juo ssad9e aAIb 0) snjeys Aema|plq
0} Buipesbdn jo Ayjiqissod ay) ayebiysanu|

JJomjau Japim ay}
pue aueT s,AWwWo| pue aue yeuueAeH
YUIM YuI| 0} 81n0J Aema|plig e 8)eal)

a|qe|ieA. Sapll JO YI0M}BU By}
anoiduwi 0y Aepp Agjjen ydinpplg ay) pue
Aema|plig 8y} usam]}ag UoI}08UU0I B 8)eald)

Buipus asioy - G102-110Z s3oafoid pasnuiond ¢ ajqeL

pJojsinuy
%» Aspaqqo
‘lleyueiN
UoM8||I0

ul syjedjooy
ol1oads

uoua||Q ‘eueT
S19]SIS UBASS

K¢
"ON Yiedjoo
uojuhod

uoja|buo)
‘aoedg
uadQ 2lignd
S,uyor 1S

L€
‘oN Aema|pug
uoja|buo)

€CH

0¢H

0¢H

8¢EH

6E€H

11

Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015



Page 88

sJapinoud
uodsuel) 21gnd

slauped ypum
piq Buipuny [eua)x3
196pnqg dIMOY

sJauped yium
piq Buipuny jeuJaix3

186png dIMOY

sJouped yum
piq Buipuny jeuJaix3
196png dIMOY

sdiysisuped ealy
|[eo07 ‘siapinoid
uodsuel) 21gnd

Awouoo7 JoyISIA
‘sdiysiauned
ealy |eooT

diysiauued Asjjen
uljjog ‘Aouaby
JUBWIUOIIAUT

333 Jo9foid oy Aesia

slaumopue
‘s1apiy
a1IysayD YHON

suonesiuebio
UjiesH

‘s[louno) ysued B
umo| ‘sdiysiauned
ealy |eoo

i x ‘sdnoub Jesn ‘17

Aauinol uinyal ayy uo BulpAo

JO Bupjjem pue spiemino Juodsued)
21ignd asn yoaiym saynou bunowo.d

- SYIeM\ Usal9), Juudal Jo/pue dojaasq

sdiysiauped
Baly |e207 Yim sajnol pajowold
Je|naJio ysiignd pue dojaas

[|e Joy} JoALl By} 0}
ss900e Buinosdw| joalold 8y Aesia

alisgem aliysayn
JaA02sIq 0} Uo sajnol pajowoid
,SJaply aliysayD YUoN Jajsuel|

|aAel)

aAI10e 86BIN0OUS 0} SUMO} UIY}IM
sojnoJ BuljpAo pue Bujjem ajqejieae
Bunybiybiy Ayolignd dojereqg

sjoafoud Bunnod sso0I2 - GLOZ-110Z S}oafoad pasnuold ¢ ajqel

,S81n0J usalb,
pajowold

sajnol
aInsia| [2007

100801
a)I AssJia|

sajnol
pajowo.d
Buipu asioH

SUMO]

LX

9X

1X

GLX

142,

Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015

12



Page 89

Awou029 JoJSIA

‘shemalep) aqua) A1BA02SIqQ puB UMO] 0} uojbuljjog
sJauped yum ysnug ‘ounon  sabeyul poob ajealo 0} gZ-9z sebpuq  ‘yiedmo] jeue)
piq Buipuny jeuaixg 333 s umo] uoibuljjog  ‘yredmoy ayy Jo aoeuns ay) anoidw| playsS9oe|N Syl

diysieuped eaiy
|e00T ‘suessng

‘diysiaupied
LTI Yied apIsionry
uljjog ‘sdnoib S1S119A0 pue siayjem Jo} yied asn p[d1Sa|20EN
Ajunwwods  juiol e se piaysajooe| 03 Aingisald pue /¢
sJsuped ypm |eo0 ‘ueld wouy yled Aiuno?d ay) ybnoayy "ON Yiedjoo4
piq Buipuny |euis)x3 333 exx ysued Aingjseid ajnoJ pue yiedyoo} sy spesbdn Ainqiseld €z1
sdnoib 8J]Ud0 UMO]} 8] 0} 8S0|0 9)N0
AJunwwod |e207 | |BUONEBIDAI PUB JBINWWOI |enuajod p[o1ySaj20BN
sJauped ypum ‘skemialep) e se 9p-0¢ sebpliqg ‘playssjooe) ul - ‘yiedmo] jeued
pIq Buipuny [euIs)x3 333 xxx ysipug  yjedmoy sy Jo soepns ay) srosdu| PIBYSSIOEIN vl
sAemiaiepp
ysnug ‘dnoig 9]N0J 8INSI9| PUB JBJNWIWOD Se
Ajlunwwio)  8Jjusd UMO) By} 0] SHUI| SI8yo a1nol uoja|buo)
sJauped yum ‘louno) ayl °'8/-99 sabpuq ‘uoyg|buon ul  ‘yredmo] jeue)
piq Buipuny jeuis)x3 333 s umo] uola|buo)  yiedmoy ayj Jo adeuns ay} aAoidw| playsajooe|N €€1

pajejas-podsuel) - G102-1102 soafoid paspuoud G ajqel

13

Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015



Page 90

186pnq dIMOY

Jauped yum
piq Buipuny [euss)x3

}1o6pnq dIMOY

sJauped ypum
pIq Buipuny [euIB)xg

sJauped yum
piq Buipuny [euss)x3

sJouped yum
piq Buipuny [euss)x3

33

333

33

333

333

333

*¥%

¥ ¥

X¥¥

e

e

dnoug
Ajlunwwon
uoja|buo)

sAemialep)
ysipug

slaumopue

S|IoUN0Y) ysued
[odey) sew|oH
pue abeuel)

sAemybiH
‘sueJisng
‘ab9)|0D
yjeayoseay

sAemialepp
ysnug ‘A1e100s
syjedioo4
Ag|sIq ‘1ouno)
ysued Aajsig

aoueuajuiew pue abeubis ‘@oeuns
anosdwi :uojs|buo) ‘eue] s,Awwo|

S|00Y9S € puB SaIIUNWWOD USdM}aq
)UI| B Se uonIpuod yjedmo) epeibdn

a1noJ yodsuel) pue ainsig| Jebuo| e
a1eaIo 0] syJed A)UNoo ay) usamiaq
@1noJ Bunosuuoo e Jo uoneal)

Sal}[I0B) pUB UMO}
[odeyn sawjoH yum spjaly buike|d
pue abe||in abeuel) usamiaq yied
9Sn paJeys peos-}o Ue JO uoieal)

Aemuaal) yoimjueN
0] amal) pue ab9||00 usamiaq yjed
asn paleys peol-}o ue Jo uoneal)

pIalje Jayun) suoieunsap

Jainwwiod pue Assiq ul sanijioe]
ay) 0] 8]N0J [9ARI] SAIJOR UR 8]e8I0 0}
yredmo ay) Jo aoeuns ay) aroidw|

L€
‘ON Aema|pug
uoja|buo)

yiedmo) youelug
YoIMaIppIN

Ul (e L
lley] %90[93YA\
0} auIT J|es

Sul]
|adey) saw|oH
0] abeuel)

Aemusalg)
YoIMjueN-amal)
0} Jul| 869]|0D
Yieayoaseay

Asisia
‘yiedmo] |eue)
1S90 Yead

¢al

8¢l

lcl

GgclL

44N

[

Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015

14



Page 91

3 Statement of action

[1oUN0D
sJauped yum J8)sayn B 1SoMA\ Ajunwwods el
piq Buipuny jeuayx3 allysay) ‘ue|d Ylim [ooyos Bupjull weysuip) pue "ON Yiedjoo4
196pnqg dIMOY 33 xx Usied aiswydld  alawdld usamjaq yyedjoo) spelbdn alaudld ¢l
suonNgLuod aJjuad juswAhojdwa 6l
Jadojanaq Jadojona@g 8| ulodpipy 0} umoy wolj Bunwiwod "ON yiedioo4
196png dIMOY 33 wx JOUMOpUET sisi[oAo Aq asn Joj spesbdn UOIMSIPPIN 621

S$931n0S
Buipunj jeuajod

}S092
pajewnsy

swi} yeis

siauled

jusawanoadwi paysabbng

aweu 9)Ig

15

Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015



4 Monitoring

Monitoring and assessment

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

16

We will monitor the progress of this ROWIP and the subsequent
implementation plans through annual review assessing the delivery of projects
against the ROWIP strategy and implementation plans. This review will note
improvements made together with usage, travel mode and health statistics,
where available. This reporting will be completed as part of LTP3 annual
review and reported to the Council's Public Rights of Way Committee and
the Cheshire Local Access Forum.

In addition, monitoring may be undertaken through national indicator sets
as these are developed and through the results of the National Highways
and Transport Network Satisfaction Surveys.

The 'Ease of use' random surveys following the Best Value Performance
Indicator 178 methodology, will be conducted internally and used to monitor
the maintenance condition of the public rights of way network.

Finally, the CROW Act 2000 set the requirement for ROWIPs to be reviewed
atintervals of not less than 10 years. Given that the strategy extends beyond
that timeframe, it is recognised that periodic review will be required and that
these Implementation Plans will in effect enact that appraisal.

Draft ROWIP Implementation Plan 2011-2015



Page 93



Cheshire East Council

lewich Road
ch

ble in other formats on request




Page 95 Agenda ltem 15

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL
Public Rights of Way Committee

Date of Meeting: 17 March 2011
Report of: Greenspaces Manager
Subject/Title: Public Inquiry to Determine Definitive Map Modification

Order - Poynton with Worth Footpath Nos 92, 93 and 94

1.0 Report Summary

1.1 This report is an informative item to brief the Committee on a recent public
inquiry and the outcome.

2.0 Recommendation

2.1 No decision is required by Committee.

3.0 Reasons for Recommendations

3.1 NA

4.0 Wards Affected

4.1 Poynton

5.0 Local Ward Members

5.1 Councillor C Beard, Councillor H Murray and Councillor R West

6.0 Policy Implications including - Climate change
- Health

6.1 Not Applicable

7.0 Financial Implications

7.1 Not Applicable

8.0 Legal Implications (Authorised by the Borough Solicitor)

8.1  Under section 53 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (WCA), the Council has
a duty, as surveying authority, to keep the Definitive Map and Statement under
continuous review. Under schedule 14 of the WCA, applications can be made to

the authority submitting evidence that suggests that the Definitive Map needs to
be amended. The authority must investigate and determine that evidence and



9.0

9.1

10.0

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Page 96

decide on the outcome whether to make a Definitive Map Modification Order or
not. When an order is made it is advertised and may be subject to objections. If
objections are not withdrawn the Council cannot then confirm the order itself and
must submit the order to the Secretary of State (Planning Inspectorate) for
determination. Where a Parish/Town Council objects to an order it is policy for a
local public inquiry to be held. The Council must provide a suitable venue and
legal support to facilitate an inquiry.

Risk Management
None
Background and Options

An application was made to Cheshire County Council in 2002 for three footpaths
to be added to the Definitive Map across land constituting a recreation ground
called Brecon Park in Poynton and partly owned by Cheshire East Council (then
Macclesfield Borough Council) and partly owned by Poynton Town Council.

The footpaths run between Park Lane in Poynton, Oakland’s Road and Public
Footpath no. 87 (Lady’s Incline). They are shown on the Plan No. MO/536A.

Cheshire County Council considered this application in a report put before the
Rights of Way Committee in July 2007. The making of an order was approved
and a Modification Order to add these footpaths was made on the 23 October
2007. Poynton with Worth Town Council had indicated their opposition to the
addition of the footpaths and submitted a formal objection to the order which was
not withdrawn.

The objection was based on the fact that there was no physical evidence of use
of the paths across the grassed fields and that bye laws renewed in 2006
implemented opening times to the Park.

Since the order was made Local Government Reorganisation transferred
responsibility for seeking a resolution to this order to Cheshire East Council.
Consequently a file of the relevant information was submitted to the Planning
Inspectorate in May 2010.

The public inquiry was held in Poynton Civic Hall on Tuesday 25 January. The
Council were represented by a barrister, Estelle Dehon from chambers in London
and the Town Council were represented by Councillor Howard Murray acting in
his capacity as a Town Councillor. The appointed Inspector was Helen Slade.

The inquiry heard evidence from the Council’s Definitive Map Officer, Clare
Hibbert and from nine witnesses and the applicant in support of the order and
from Councillor Murray in opposition. The basis of the evidence in support was
that under section 31 of the Highways Act 1980, the ways had been used for a
full period of 20 years without force, secrecy or permission and without sufficient
evidence to indicate that there has been no intention to dedicate during that
period. If these criteria are fulfilled then the way is deemed to have been



10.8

10.9

10.10

11.0

Page 97

dedicated. The relevant 20 year period was taken as being from 1982 to 2002
(when the application was made).

The evidence in opposition to the order was that there was not sufficient
evidence of use as there was no physical line of tread on the ground to indicate a
used line and that the Bye laws restricted the times of entry to the ground.

During the course of questioning Councillor Murray accepted that, as far as he
was aware, access to Brecon Park had never been subject to closing times.
These times had also never been made public on notices or signs around the
park. Reference was made to aerial photographs of various ages indicating that
there was no visible line of tread recorded.

The inquiry was closed and concluded the same day. The Inspector issued a
decision letter on the 4 February in which she confirmed the order. The balance
of the argument weighed in favour of the paths having been deemed to have
been dedicated. There was insufficient evidence to show a lack of intention on
the part of the landowners to dedicate to satisfy the requirements of section 31 of
the Highways Act 1980.

The Council has now advertised the confirmation of the order and allowed 42
days for a High Court challenge to be made. This period expires on the 8 April
2011. A challenge can only be made on the basis that the Inspector in reaching
her decision has wrongly applied the relevant law.

Access to Information

The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by contacting
the report writer:

Name: Clare Hibbert

Designation: Definitive Map Officer

Tel No: 01606 271823

Email: clare.hibbert@cheshireeast.gov.uk




Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous meeting
	5 Highways Act 1980 - Section 119: Application for the  Diversion of Public Footpath No 52, Parish of Bollington and Nos 35 (part) and 48, Parish of Adlington
	05b - Adlington FP35 (part)  38 and Bollington FP52

	6 Highways Act 1980  - Section 119: Proposed  Diversion of Public Footpath No. 32 (part), Parish of Wildboarclough and Public Footpath No. 23 (part), Parish of Sutton
	06b - Wildboarclough 32

	7 Highways Act 1980 -  Section 119: Application for the Diversion of part of Public Footpath No. 8 in the Parish of Rainow
	07b - Rainow FP8

	8 Highways Act 1980 - Section 119 - Application for the Diversion of Public Footpath No 9 (part), Parish of Sutton
	08b - Sutton FP9

	9 Highways Act 1980  - Section 119 - Proposed  Diversion of Public Footpath no. 25 (part), Parish of Kettleshulme
	09b - Kettleshume 25

	10 Highways Act 1980 - Section 119 - Application for the Diversion of Public Footpath No 39 (part), Parish of Wincle
	10b - Wincle FP39

	11 Highways Act 1980  - Section 119: Application for the  Diversion of parts of Public Footpath Nos 7, 8 and 26, Parish of Mottram St Andrew
	11b- Mottram St Andrew FPs 7  8 and 26
	11c - Extra Plan - DMMO (MA-5-240) - Mottram St Andrew FPs 7  8 and 26

	12 Highways Act 1980 - Section 119:  Application for the  Diversion of Public Footpath no. 14 (part), Parish of Wildboarclough
	12b - Wildboarclough FP14

	13 Highways Act 1980 -Section 119: Application for the Diversion of Public Footpath No 128 (part), Parish of Wilmslow
	13b - Wilmslow FP128

	14 Cheshire East Rights of Way Improvement Plan 2011-2026: Notification of Implementation Plan 2011-2015
	14b - ROWIP Implementation Plan Appendix 1

	15 Public Inquiry to Determine Definitive Map Modification Order - Poynton with Worth Footpath Nos 92, 93 and 94

